BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

THURSDAY, January 26, 2012 at 2:00 p.m.
San Carlos Library
Conference Room A/B
610 Elm Street, San Carlos, CA 94070

1.
2.

Roll Call
Public Comment
Persons wishing to address the Board on matters NOT on the posted agenda may do so.
Each speaker is limited to two minutes. If there are more than five individuals wishing to speak during public comment, the Chairman will draw five speaker cards from those
submitted to speak during this time. The balance of the Public Comment speakers will be called upon at the end of the Board Meeting.
If the item you are speaking on is not listed on the agenda, please be advised that the Board may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed as allowed under
The Brown Act (Government Code Section 54954.2). The Board's general policy is to refer items to staff for attention, or have a matter placed on a future Board agenda for a
more comprehensive action or report and formal public discussion and input at that time.

3.

Approval of Consent Calendar:
Consent Calendar item(s) are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items unless members of the Board,
staff or public request specific items be removed for separate action. Items removed from the Consent Calendar will be moved to the end of the agenda for separate
discussion.

A.
B.
C.

Adopt the November 17, 2011 BOD Meeting Minutes
Resolution Approving 401(a) Plan Amendment
Receipt of Recology and SBR Monthly Reports

4.

New Business:
A.
Election of New Officers for 2012
B.
Mid-Year Review of FY2012 Annual Operating Budget
C.
Resolution Accepting the Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Annual Financial Statements
D.
Update on Contractor Auditing: Collection Services and Facility Operations Auditing and Financial Systems
Auditing
E.
Results of 2011 Fourth Quarter Recology Franchise Agreement(s) Quarterly Contamination
Measurement for Loads of Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials and Plant Materials
F.
Discussion on Topics for Future Board Retreat

5.

Old Business:
A.
RSMC Franchise Agreement Operational and Contract Administration Update
B.
SBR Shoreway Operational and Contract Administration Update

6.

Staff Updates
a)
Update on Recology Commercial Recycling Outreach Efforts
b)
Recycling and Outreach Programs Update
c)
Shoreway Construction Update
d)
Update on 2012/2013 Franchise Rate Setting Process
e)
Preview of Upcoming Board meetings

7.

Board Member Comments

8.

Adjourn

Next Regular meeting scheduled for February 23, 2012, San Carlos Library at 2 pm

MEMBER AGENCIES
ATHERTON * BELMONT * BURLINGAME * EAST PALO ALTO * FOSTER CITY * HILLSBOROUGH * MENLO PARK * REDWOOD CITY
* SAN CARLOS * SAN MATEO * COUNTY OF SAN MATEO * WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT

Agenda Item 3

DRAFT MINUTES

SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
November 17, 2011 – 2:00 p.m.
San Carlos Library Conference Room A/B

1. Roll Call:
CTO 2:05 p.m.
In attendance: Belmont, Foster City, Hillsborough, Menlo Park, Redwood City, San Carlos, San Mateo, County of
San Mateo, West Bay Sanitary District
2.

Public Comment
Persons wishing to address the Board on matters NOT on the posted agenda may do so.
Each speaker is limited to two minutes. If there are more than five individuals wishing to speak during public comment, the Chairman will draw five speaker
cards from those submitted to speak during this time. The balance of the Public Comment speakers will be called upon at the end of the Board Meeting.
If the item you are speaking on is not listed on the agenda, please be advised that the Board may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed as
allowed under The Brown Act (Government Code Section 54954.2). The Board's general policy is to refer items to staff for attention, or have a matter
placed on a future Board agenda for a more comprehensive action or report and formal public discussion and input at that time.

None

3.

Approval of Consent Calendar:
Consent Calendar item(s) are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items unless
members of the Board, staff or public request specific items be removed for separate action. Items removed from the Consent Calendar will be moved to
the end of the agenda for separate discussion.

A.
B.
C.
D.
E.

Adopt the October 27, 2011 BOD Meeting Minutes
Approval of Quarterly Investment Report as of 9/30/11
Approval of 2012 Board Meeting Calendar
Resolution Approving Office Lease Agreement at San Carlos Library
Receipt of Recology and SBR Monthly Reports

M/S: Hardy/Fotu
Voice Vote: All in Favor
4.

New Business:
A.
Presentation on Future Strategic Priorities and Planning
Executive Director McCarthy noted that at the direction of the Board and the Executive Committee, staff was
asked to begin the conversation about what is next for the SBWMA over the next 5 to 6 years.
Executive Director McCarthy noted that staff would be reaching out to the Board with dates for a public meeting
sometime in February to discuss strategic planning further.
Executive Director McCarthy’s gave a presentation referencing the success the SBWMA has had to date, the
strategic drivers for future plans, noting specifically: AB 341 75% Statewide recycling goal by 2020, the expiration
of the OX Mountain Disposal Agreement in 2019, and rate stability and predictability, and the existing strategic
plan, and next steps.
Chair Moura asked about diversion numbers being provided to individual agencies.
Executive Director McCarthy answered that the numbers are in the monthly contractor reports.
Member Oskoui asked about the issue of having elected officials on the Board that was brought up at the Grand
Opening ceremony noting there is some interest and wanting to know more about what that would mean from
Belmont council members.
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Chair Moura noted that it is a contentious issue, and some members of the Board do not want that to happen.
Executive Director McCarthy added that there are many governance issues to talk about, adding that as well as
the governance structure, possibly getting additional JPA members, and other structural changes to the JPA like
the fiscal year versus calendar year issue that has been brought up before.
B.
Discussion on Shoreway Education Center Tour Bus Funding and Tour Reservation Protocol
Staff Gans announced that January 2012 would be the launch of the school group tour program and the
Shoreway Environmental Center. He introduced Staff Mututa to discuss the details of the program.
Staff Mututa noted that the goal of the program is to promote and empower 4R behaviors. The tours will be 2
hours, and be in line with California State curriculum for 4th to 6th grade. Free transportation would be provided to
the 4th – 6th grade tours groups from schools within the SBWMA service area.
She also noted that to promote the tour program, there would be promotional flyers to schools, and in the
Rethinker. She asked for suggestions from the Board Members on promotional ideas.
Member Fotu stated that that the staff report noted that every 3rd Thursday the Education Center would be open.
She asked if reservations were required.
Staff Mututa answered that reservations are preferred, but tours will be given to those who just show up as well.
Member Bernardo asked why busses are being provided.
Executive Director McCarthy answered that based on experience from the program in Alameda County, without
providing this service the turnout for tours would be much lower. Adding that, having multiple private vehicles on
site raises other concerns with parking and safety as well.
Member Scott requested revisiting paying for the buses at the strategic plan meeting.
C.

Resolution Approving Shoreway Facility Tipping Fee Adjustments Effective 1/1/12

Executive Director McCarthy gave a power point presentation on the proposed rates for 2012 summarizing the
recommended tip fee adjustments. He noted a recommended decrease of $2/ton in the franchise rate, no
change to the residential organics, and commercial food waste rate, but separating commercial food waste as its
own rate which it doesn’t currently have, and further reductions in public rates, because the July changes have
driven an increase in public solid waste volumes, and have driven a very significant increase in public yard waste
volumes.
Member Scott asked for clarification on projected rates vs. no change.
Executive Director McCarthy answered that the budgeted numbers haven’t been implemented yet; they were
projected for January 1, 2012 in the budget passed in June. Noting that now we are recommending changes to
those projected numbers before they are implemented.
Member Oskoui asked how undesignated funds are being allocated, and if they are cumulative.
Executive Director McCarthy answered that those funds can not be spent without Board approval. He also
answered that the funds are cumulative. We are projecting in 2012 we will have $350,000 in undesignated funds.
Noting that the $350,000 was the number to watch as the Board considered changing tip fees.
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Member Fotu questioned why the undesignated funds have been decreasing year after year.
Executive Director McCarthy answered that last year we had proposed a $93/ton tip fee and what was passed
was $90, noting that that was part of it.
Staff Moran added that some of the 2011 undesignated reserve money was used to start the equipment reserve
fund, some was used to finish the Master Plan, which was always planned for using internal money, some will be
used to start paying off the $3M bond owed to the City of Burlingame, and some to pay principal on our debt
which is about $1M a year. He explained further that in 2011 you see the dollars in the reserves and in 2012
those dollars are spent.
Member Hardy asked if the reserve balances being projected include the proposed reduced tipping fees.
Executive Director McCarthy answered that this is what is expected.
Member Scott asked for clarification on the rate stabilization fund.
Executive Director McCarthy answered that it is the JPA’s rate stabilization fund, is money held by the JPA in
case of any unexpected shocks to our budget. It’s an emergency fund.
Executive Director McCarthy continued, noting that the other part of the analysis was to look at projected rates vs.
the operational cost. He added that it has been the direction of the Board to set rates to cover costs, and that at
the proposed $88/ton we are still above what our actual costs are.
Member Oskoui asked if the revenues of green waste are off setting the cost, wanting to know where commodity
revenues are built in.
Executive Director McCarthy answered that the numbers are all pretty much stand-alone costs. It’s built-in in the
recommended tipping fees, because we look at the total revenue needed, but it’s not built in on the cost side.
Member Clark asked for clarification if the customers at the gate would be charged $88 in addition to the
franchise fee.
Executive Director McCarthy answered that this is the total fee charged to franchise customers.
Member Galli asked why self-haul vehicles are not weighed.
Executive Director McCarthy stated that the facility isn’t set up for that kind of operation.
Member Oskoui asked about the balancing account, noting that his perception was each agency was paying off
Allied.
Executive Director McCarthy answered that the agency owes money directly to Allied for facility operations.
Member Fotu commented that the recommended tip fee adjustments don’t appear to be a structure that promotes
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sustainability.
Member Fotu made a motion for discussion to keep the solid waste rate at $90/ton and lower the residential
organics to $85, and keep commercial food waste as proposed by staff, but still remain revenue neutral in order
to promote the mission statement of the JPA and promote sustainability.
Chair Moura asked what the total revenue impact this motion would be.
Executive Director McCarthy answered that it would be fairly close, but not quite revenue neutral.
Member Scott asked how this affects Member Agency rates.
Executive Director McCarthy answered that the staff report says this reduces collection rates by 0.4%. Adding
that if an agency has a reduction it would be in the revenue reconciliation process.
Member Galli commented that incentives to recycle should be in the rates not in the tip fees.
Member Fotu pointed out that it does trickle down, because every time a vehicle goes through the gate those tons
do get assigned to each agency.
Member Oskoui seconded Member Fotu’s motions for further discussion.
Member Scott announced that West Bay Sanitary District couldn’t support that motion.
Vice Chair Porter added that there has been discussion for quite some time to have tip fees cover the cost of
operations, and he felt it was a principal part of the discussion.
Member Hardy made an alternate motion to move the resolution as drafted by staff, with a request that at the
Board’s strategic planning retreat include discussion how to achieve philosophical approaches of encouraging
recycling.
Member Porter seconded the motion.
Motion passes: 7-2-0-3
Agency
Atherton
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough

Yes

No
X

X
X
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Abstain

Absent
X
X
X

Agency
Menlo Park
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo
West Bay Sanitary District

Yes
X
X
X
X
X

No
X

Abstain

Absent
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5.

Old Business:
A.
RSMC Franchise Agreement Operational and Contract Administration Update
Gino Gasparini gave an update on Recology operations. He shared that Recology has an updated 2012 event
form, and asked the agencies for any information they can give in advance, so that Recology can prepare as
much as possible in advance. He also noted that Recology is working with staff for compost and shred events for
the Member Agencies. He also announced that they will be operational on Thanksgiving Day.
B.

SBR Shoreway Operational and Contract Administration Update

Dwight Herring introduced himself; as it was the first time he addressed the Board. He updated the board on
diversion opportunities and announced SBR’s partnership with St. Vincent De Paul, where people can drop of
reusable clothes and household items at Shoreway
Chair Moura asked if people would get tax receipts for donations to St. Vincent De Paul.
Dwight Herring answered yes, receipts are given.
6.

Staff Updates
a)
Update on Recology Commercial Recycling Outreach Efforts
b)
Recycling and Outreach Programs Update
c)
Shoreway Construction Update
Staff Gans announced that the installation of the Solar Power has begun, and when it’s done it will probably
generate about 50% of the facilities power needs. It is a big part of our LEED Certification process.
d)

Update on 2012/2013 Franchise Rate Setting Process

Executive Director McCarthy brought the Board’s attention to this item. It will be an ongoing update going
forward. He noted that there will be a rate setting workshop in the spring intended to get Board Members more
involved in the process, and have more communication.
Chair Moura asked if it made sense to have Board of Director’s rate workshop, and then have elected officials
workshop.
Executive Director McCarthy answered anyway the Board wanted to do it, we will.
e)
7.

Preview of Upcoming Board meetings

Board Member Comments
Member Scott requested SBWMA and Recology staff attend their rate setting meeting on December 14th.

8.

Adjourn 3:33

Next Regular meeting scheduled for January 26, 2012, San Carlos Library at 2 pm
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STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Marshall Moran, Finance Manager
January 26, 2012 Board of Director’s Meeting
Resolution Authorizing Update to 401(a) Retirement Plan Language

Recommendation
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2012-01 attached hereto
authorizing the following action:
Update the 401(a) Retirement Plan language.
Analysis
The Internal Revenue Service has issued instructions that require all qualified plans to be restated for various
changes to pension laws. The changes are technical in nature and have little effect on our plan except to keep it in
a tax qualified status. The following are brief highlights:
Required minimum distribution relief for 2009
WRERA 2008 provides some relief from the required minimum distribution (RMD) rules for distributions required
from qualified plans and IRAs for calendar year 2009. The distribution that is required for calendar year 2009 can
be waived. Also, the five-year period where the five-year rule applies is determined without regard to 2009. The
2009 relief rules apply to distributions from defined contribution plans, Section 403(a) and 403(b) defined
contribution plans, governmental Section 457 defined contribution plans and IRAs.
Roth-to-Roth rollovers
In general, a qualified plan or IRA can be rolled over or converted to a Roth IRA in a taxable event. In the years
before 2010, such a conversion is not permitted if the individual's gross income exceeds $100,000. However, the
$100,000 adjusted gross income limitation does not apply after 2009. WRERA 2008 provides that a rollover from
a Roth IRA or a designated Roth account to a Roth IRA is not subject to the adjusted gross income limitation and
is not subject to tax
Rollovers by non-spouse beneficiaries
A non-spouse beneficiary can roll over an inherited eligible retirement plan to an IRA created to receive the
inherited eligible retirement plan in a direct trustee-to-trustee transfer. WRERA 2008 provides that, for plan years
beginning after 2009, a rollover by a non-spouse beneficiary is generally treated like any other eligible rollover.
Plans therefore would be required to permit such rollovers by non-spouse beneficiaries.
There have been no changes to the basic benefit provisions offered to our employees. As a reminder, we have a
non-PERS retirement plan similar to 401(k) plans in the private sector.
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Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact associated with the retirement plan language changes.
Attachments:
Resolution No. 2012-01
Exhibit A – SBWMA 401(a) Retirement Plan
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RESOLUTION NO. 2012-01
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
AUTHORIZING 401(a) RETIREMENT PLAN AMENDMENT
WHEREAS, the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) Board of Directors hereby takes
the following action with respect to the South Bayside Waste Management Authority 401(a) Plan, Exhibit A hereto
(the Plan):
RESOLVED: That the Plan be adopted in the form attached hereto, which Plan is hereby
adopted and approved;
RESOLVED FURTHER: That the Executive Director of the SBWMA is authorized and directed to
execute the Plan on behalf of the SBWMA.
RESOLVED FURTHER: That Marshall Moran, the Finance Manager, and Kevin McCarthy, the
Executive Director, are hereby appointed as the Trustees of the Plan; and
RESOLVED FURTHER: That the Executive Director of the SBWMA be, and hereby is, authorized and
directed to take any and all actions and execute and deliver such documents as he may deem necessary,
appropriate or convenient to effect the foregoing action including, without limitation, causing to be
prepared and filed such reports, documents or other information as may be required.
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority,
County of San Mateo, State of California on this 26th day of January, 2012, by the following vote:
Agency
Atherton
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City

Yes

Hillsborough
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No

Abstain

Absent

Agency
Menlo Park
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo
West Bay Sanitary
District

Yes

No

Abstain
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Absent

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2012-01 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting
of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 26th, 2012.
ATTEST:

____________________________
Brian Moura, Chairperson of SBWMA

_________________________________
Cyndi Urman, Board Secretary
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
______________________________
Robert Lanzone, SBWMA Counsel
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
FORMAL RECORD OF ACTION
The following is a formal record of action taken by the governing body of South Bayside
Waste Management Authority (the "Company").
With respect to the amendment of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority
401(a) Plan (the "Plan"), the following resolutions are hereby adopted:
RESOLVED: That the Plan be amended in the form attached hereto,
which amendment is hereby adopted and approved;
RESOLVED FURTHER: That the appropriate officers of the Company
be, and they hereby are, authorized and directed to execute said
amendment on behalf of the Company;
RESOLVED FURTHER: That the officers of the Company be, and
they hereby are, authorized and directed to take any and all actions and
execute and deliver such documents as they may deem necessary,
appropriate or convenient to effect the foregoing resolutions including,
without limitation, causing to be prepared and filed such reports
documents or other information as may be required under applicable law.

Dated this _______ day of _______________, 2011.

_________________________________
_________________________________
_________________________________

Copyright 2002-2011 Berliant & Associates
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South Bayside Waste Management Authority
401(a) Plan
2011 REQUIRED AMENDMENT
WHEREAS, South Bayside Waste Management Authority (the "Company") maintains
the South Bayside Waste Management Authority 401(a) Plan (the "Plan") for the benefit of
certain of its employees; and
Plan;

WHEREAS, Pursuant to applicable IRS procedures, the Company desires to amend the

NOW, THEREFORE, the Plan is hereby amended as set forth below effective as
provided therein.
This Amendment to the Plan is adopted to reflect provisions of the Worker, Retiree and
Employer Recovery Act (the "WRERA") and certain other provisions of applicable law and the
applicable regulations that are generally effective after December 31, 2008 ("Applicable Law").
This Amendment is intended as good faith compliance with the requirements of the WRERA and
Applicable Law and is to be construed in accordance with same. This Amendment and the
provisions of Applicable Law shall supersede the provisions of the Plan to the extent those
provisions are inconsistent with the provisions of this Amendment, WRERA and Applicable
Law.
A. OPTIONAL PROVISIONS:
2009 Required Minimum Distributions
1a.

Indicate the extent to which participants and beneficiaries have an election to receive
distributions that include 2009 RMDs:
i. [ X ] Default to continue 2009 RMDs.
ii. [ ] Default to discontinue 2009 RMDs.
iii. [ ] Other: ___________.
NOTE: If "Other" is selected, the below provisions will not apply except to the extent
specified.

1b.

Direct Rollovers of 2009 RMDs. For purposes of the direct rollover provisions of the
Plan, the following will also be treated as eligible rollover distributions in 2009:
i. [ X ] None. 2009 RMDs will not be treated as eligible rollover distributions in 2009.
ii. [ ] 2009 RMDs only.
iii. [ ] Extended 2009 RMDs only.
iv. [ ] 2009 RMDs and Extended 2009 RMDs.

Roth In-Plan Rollovers
2a.

If the Plan allows for Roth contributions and the plan is not a limited scope 403(b) plan,
are In-Plan Roth Rollovers permitted?
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2b.

2c.

2d.
2e.

i. [ ] No.
ii. [ ] Yes - only if the Plan otherwise allows for the distribution/in-service
withdrawal.
iii. [ ] Yes - limitations and/or conditions apply.
iv. [ ] Yes - all distributions/in-service withdrawals permitted under the Code even if
not otherwise provided under the plan.
NOTE: To prevent terminated employees from taking an In-Plan Roth Rollover or to
limit In-Plan Roth Rollovers to a nondiscriminatory class, choose "limitations and/or
conditions apply" and describe the circumstances under which participants can take an
In-Plan Roth Rollover.
If A.2a is not "No", indicate whether In-Plan Roth Rollovers are permitted from partially
vested accounts:
i. [ ] Yes.
ii. [ ] No.
If A.2a is "Yes -limitations and/or conditions", describe the limitations and/or conditions:
________.
NOTE: In-Plan Roth Rollovers may only be permitted for eligible distributions that are
also rollover distributions (as defined in Code section 402(c)(4)).
If A.2a is not "No", enter the effective date of the In-Plan Roth Rollovers: __________
(must be after Sept. 27, 2010).
If A.2a is not "No", indicate method of preserving Code section 411(d)(6) protected
benefits:
i. [ ] Distributions from the In-Plan Roth Rollover Account are permitted at any time
ii. [ ] Preserve existing distributions/in-service withdrawals rights for each account
iii. [ ] Other: _____________________________________

B. STANDARD PROVISIONS:
1.

2009 Required Minimum Distributions. Notwithstanding other provisions of the Plan to
the contrary; to the extent provided above, and by Code section 401(a)(9), IRS Notice
2009-82 and any superseding guidance, a participant or beneficiary who would have been
required to receive 2009 RMDs or Extended 2009 RMDs will receive those distributions
for 2009 unless the participant or beneficiary chooses not to receive such distributions.
Participants and beneficiaries described in the preceding sentence will be given the
opportunity to elect to stop receiving the distributions described in the preceding
sentence.
A.

In addition, notwithstanding other provisions of the Plan to the contrary, and
solely for purposes of applying the direct rollover provisions of the Plan, certain
additional distributions in 2009, as chosen above, will be treated as eligible
rollover distributions.

B.

Definitions:
i.

"2009 RMDs" are Required Minimum Distributions for 2009 but for the
enactment of section 401(a)(9)(H) of the Code;

Copyright 2002-2011 Berliant & Associates
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ii.

2.

"Extended 2009 RMDs" are one or more payments in a series of
substantially equal distributions (that include the 2009 RMDs) made at
least annually and expected to last for the life (or life expectancy) of the
participant, the joint lives (or joint life expectancy) of the participant and
the participant’s designated beneficiary, or for a period of at least 10 years.

Roth In-Plan Rollovers. To the extent provided in the Optional Provisions and to the
extent permitted by Code section 402A(c), IRS Notice 2010-84 and any superseding
guidance, a distribution from the Plan other than from a designated Roth Account that is
an eligible rollover distribution (as defined in Code section 408A(e)) may be rolled over
to a designated Roth Account maintained under this Plan for the benefit of the individual
to whom the distribution is made.
"In-Plan Roth Rollover" means an Employee contribution made to the Plan as a rollover
from another account in the Plan pursuant to this Section.
"In-Plan Roth Rollover Account" means so much of a participant's account as consists of
a participant's In-Plan Roth Rollover Contributions (and corresponding earnings) made to
the Plan.
If In-Plan Roth Rollovers are permitted for all distributions permitted under the Code and
to the extent provided in the Optional Provisions, In-Plan Roth Rollovers are permitted at
the following times:
A.

Upon the attainment of age 50 except elective deferrals, qualified nonelective
contributions, qualified matching contributions and the portion of any account
that has been used to satisfy the safe harbor requirements of Code sections
401(k)(12) or 401(k)(13) and/or 401(m)(11) or 401(m)(12) shall not be eligible
for withdrawal until the participant attains age 59-1/2.

B.

After-tax, rollover and voluntary accounts can be converted to an In-Plan Roth
Rollover Account at any time.

C.

From a participant's matching contribution account and/or profit sharing
contribution account after 5 years of participation. In-service withdrawals are
allowed from a participant's matching contribution account and/or profit sharing
contribution account on funds held for at least 2 years. Withdrawals after 5 years
of participation and/or 2 years of accumulation are only permitted from the
accounts to the extent such account has not been used to satisfy the requirements
of Code sections 401(k)(12) or 401(k)(13) and/or 401(m)(11) or 401(m)(12).
Withdrawals after 5 years of participation and/or 2 years of accumulation are also
only permitted from accounts to the extent such account has not been treated as
qualified matching contributions or qualified nonelective contributions.

D.

Immediately after termination of employment.
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3.

Notice 2010-15 - HEART Act. Plan provisions pursuant to Code sections 401(a)(37),
414(u)(9) and 414(u)(12), to the extent applicable, shall also be interpreted pursuant to
Notice 2010-15 and any superseding guidance.

4.

Right to Divest Publicly Traded Employer Securities. To the extent Code section
401(a)(35) applies to the plan (the Plan holds publicly traded employer securities and is
an applicable defined contribution plan under Code section 401(a)(35)(E)), the rules
regarding the rights to divest publicly traded employer securities shall be interpreted
pursuant to Treas. Reg. section 1.401(a)(35)-1 and any applicable superseding guidance.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Amendment to be executed
this _____ day of ________________, 2011.
SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT
AUTHORITY:
Signature:________________________________
Print Name: ______________________________
Title/Position:___________________
V4.02-4.02
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STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Cliff Feldman, Recycling Programs Manager
Hilary Gans, Facility Operations Contracts Manager
January 26, 2012 Board of Directors Meeting
Receipt of Recology and SBR Monthly Reports

Recommendation
This is an informational report and no action is necessary.
Analysis
Recology San Mateo County (Recology) and South Bay Recycling (SBR) are required to submit monthly reports.
Both companies submitted their Monthly Reports on time. These Monthly Reports are due 15 days after the end
of each month. Recology’s and SBR’s reports for the month of December 2011 are attached.
It’s important to note that the tonnage information presented in Recology’s Monthly Report is derived from data
compiled by SBR as the Shoreway Environmental Center facility operator. Therefore, regarding the reporting of
tonnage, the Recology and SBR reports are redundant. In addition, the SBR report provides details on the
transfer station and buy-back center activities and therefore includes more facility tonnage data than the Recology
Monthly Report. Recology’s report includes collection data, monthly updates on various operations, and call
center complaint/inquiry related metrics.
Background
Article 9, section 9.05 of the Member Agencies Franchise Agreement(s) with RSMC require the company to
prepare and submit a monthly report. Similarly, Article 8, section 8.07 of the Operations Agreement between the
SBWMA and SBR requires the company to submit a monthly report. The guidelines and reporting requirements
for each company are specified in their respective Agreements.
Attachments:
Attachment A - Recology November 2011 Monthly Report
Attachment B - SBR November 2011 Monthly Report
Attachment C - Recology December 2011 Monthly Report
Attachment D - SBR December 2011 Monthly Report
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Agenda Item 3C
Receipt of Recology and SBR Monthly Reports

Attachment A: Recology November 2011 Monthly Report
Attachment B: SBR November 2011 Monthly Report
Attachment C: Recology December 2011 Monthly Report
Attachment D: SBR December 2011 Monthly Report

♦
♦
♦
♦

Recology November 2011 Monthly Report
SBR November 2011 Monthly Report
Recology December 2011 Monthly Report
SBR December 2011 Monthly Report
♦ Files too large to be included in packet
Posted on Website: www.rethinkwaste.org
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Agenda Item 4

STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Kevin McCarthy, Executive Director
January 26, 2012 Board of Director’s Meeting
Election of New Officers for 2012

Recommendation
Staff recommends the following process for the Board to follow in electing a Chair and Vice Chair for 2012:
1. Chair calls for nominations for the position of Chair (nominations do not require a second).
2. Motion is adopted to close nominations.
3. Board votes on nominations in the order in which the nominations were made until a Chair is elected.
4. Sections 8.5 and 10.8 of the JPA Agreement require the successful vote to be by 2/3 of the Directors
present.
5. The new Chair (if the current Chair is not re-elected) takes the gavel and assumes the office and calls for
nominations for Vice-Chair and the same procedure is followed for electing the Vice Chair.
Background
The SBWMA Joint Powers Agreement was amended in 2005 to provide for the annual election of a Chair and
Vice Chair from amongst the SBWMA Board members. (JPA Agreement sec. 8.5 and 8.6).
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STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Kevin McCarthy, Executive Director
Marshall Moran, Finance Manager
January 26, 2012 Board of Director’s Meeting
Mid-Year Review of FY2012 Annual Operating Budget

Recommendation
This staff report is for discussion purposes only and no formal action is requested of the Board of Directors.
Staff is presenting a draft budget document for consideration and review with changes from the Board to be
incorporated into a revised and final staff report for the February 23, 2012 Board meeting. Attachment A
contains budget worksheets providing line item detail for all projected revenues and expenditures. Capital
spending is not addressed in this mid-year review.
Analysis
Staff has conducted a thorough analysis of year-to-date revenues and expenditures. As originally budgeted and
based on the projections detailed below, staff is not expecting any required Board action for revenue transfers
from reserves to meet bond covenant requirements.
Budget Variances
As detailed under “Fiscal Impact” we are projecting net income of $3,044,790 which is $597,160 below our
approved budgeted net income of $3,641,950. This negative variance of $597,160 is due primarily to the following
factors:
•

•
•

$859,300 in higher SBR facility operating expenses due to higher tons and a one-time payment of
$276,000 for project management costs related to the MRF sorting equipment installation per Section
7.02 of the Operations Agreement; this expense was originally assumed to be covered in the FY 2011
budget.
$718,700 in higher disposal and processing fees associated with higher than budgeted tons.
$221,300 in higher Allied Waste balancing account payments due to the timing of a quarterly payment
falling in the current fiscal year.

The above higher operating expenses were partially offset by higher operating revenues of $394,400, lower
SBWMA program expenses of $171,140 and lower buyback payments of $502,100 due to lower payments made
by SBR versus the budgeted amount based on Allied’s payment trend in 2010.
Background
On June 23, 2011 the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) Board of Directors adopted the
FY 2012 Operating Budget.
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Fiscal Impact
The following tables represent FY 2012 revenues and expenditures, and payments through December 15, 2011,
and year-end projections through June 30, 2012.

Revenues
Total Revenues
Total Expenditures
Net Gain/(Loss):

Revenues
Tip Fee Revenues

FY 2012 NET INCOME
FY 2012
FY 2012
Year End
Adopted Budget
Projections
$40,132,600
$40,527,000
$36,490,650
$37,482,210
$3,641,950
$3,044,790

Variance
$394,400
($991,560)
($597,160)

FY 2012 REVENUES
FY 2012
FY 2012
Adopted
Year End
Budget
Projections
$28,972,200
$29,257,100

Variance
$284,900

Commodity Sales Revenues*
$10,567,600
Interest Income
$114,200
HHW and Other Revenue
$478,000
Total Revenues:
$40,132,600
* Net of commodity revenue share with SBR.

$10,488,300
$238,200
$543,400
$40,527,000

($79,300)
$124,000
$64,800
$394,400

FY 2012 EXPENDITURES

Expenditures
Administrative Expenses
Contract Compliance &
Support
Recycling & AB 939
Compliance
Collection Operations
Total SBWMA Expenses:

FY 2012
Adopted
Budget*
$1,583,950

FY 2012
Year-to-date
Totals
$761,982

FY 2012
Year End
Projections
$1,567,976

Variance
($15,974)

$375,000

$73,915

$373,232

($1,768)

$1,066,500

$181,511

$893,302

($173,198)

$468,600
$3,494,050

$174,624
$1,192,031

$488,400
$3,322,910

$19,800
($171,140)

$12,543,333
$13,735,364

$34,159,300
$37,482,210

$1,162,700
$991,560

Shoreway Operations**:
$32,996,600
Total Expenses:
$36,490,650
* Exclusive of capital project expenses
** See breakout of expenses on the next page
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Expenditures

FY 2012 EXPENDITURE DETAIL FOR SHOREWAY OPERATIONS
FY 2012
FY 2012
FY 2012
Year-to-date
Year End
Adopted Budget
Totals
Projections

Variance

Allied Operating Contract*
$1,109,500
$833,675
$1,330,800
$221,300
SBR Compensation
$13,569,200
$4,848,048
$14,428,500
$859,300
Disposal and Processing
$12,083,300
$5,472,502
$12,802,00
$718,700
Buyback Payments
$1,099,100
$200,237
$597,000
($502,100)
Insurance Shoreway
$281,500
$26,104
$248,500
($33,000)
Education Center
$80,000
$5,035
$70,000
($10,000)
Debt Service Bond Interest
$3,177,900
$529,644
$3,177,900
0
Other Operating Expenses**
$170,000
$33,667
$85,000
($85,000)
Taxes (Sewer)
$46,400
$13,779
$26,400
($20,000)
Franchise Fee (San Carlos)
$1,379,700
$580,642
$1,393,200
$13,500
Total Shoreway
$32,996,600
$12,543,333
$34,159,300
$1,162,700
Operations:
* Allied Waste balancing account payments for Shoreway operations through 12/31/10.
** Includes Ox Mtn. tipper maintenance, Shoreway facility repairs, and MRF equipment maintenance >$10k.
The Allied Operating Contract expense includes the SBWMA paying off half or $671,000 of the 2009 Balancing
Account final total amount owed to Allied of $1,346,835. In addition, the 2nd quarter payment was booked in
FY 2012 instead of FY 2011. The 2009 balance is fully paid. The final Allied balance owed for 2010 is $642,000,
half of which will be paid in FY 2012 and the remainder in FY 2013. This balance is $231,000 lower than the
estimate made for the budget based on the HFH November 2010 report.
Attachments:
A – FY2012 Mid-Year Projections
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
REVENUE SUMMARY

REVENUE SUMMARY
ADMINISTRATIVE REVENUES
409100
INVESTMENT INCOME
409101
INVESTMENT (GASB 31) MARKET VALUE ADJ
409200
INTEREST INCOME
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE

FY 2011-2012 APPROVED BUDGET

ACTUAL
FY 2009-2010

ACTUAL
FY 2010-2011

APPROVED BUDGET
FY 2011-2012

MID-YEAR
PROJECTION
FY 2011-2012

Variance

79,010
(63,342)

137,052

114,200

238,200

124,000

15,668

137,052

114,200

238,200

124,000

27,479,290
8,691,557

28,660,638
10,719,422

32,079

146,077
358,594
71,707

70,000
408,600
-

70,000
428,400
45,000

480008
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
TOTAL OPERATIONS

86,724
36,289,650

56,983
40,013,421

40,018,400

40,288,800

270,400

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
MISCELLANEOUS - EQPT AUCTION

36,305,318
257,500

40,150,473

40,132,600

40,527,000

394,400

TOTAL REVENUE

36,562,818

40,150,473

40,132,600

40,527,000

394,400

NET OPERATING INCOME / <LOSS>
% OF REVENUE

(1,615,492)

3,801,627

3,641,950

3,044,790

(597,160)
-1.49%

OPERATIONS
480007
TIPPING FEES
480023
COMMODITY SALES
COMMODITY REVENUE SHARE - NEW
480024
OX MOUNTAIN
E-RECYCLING REVENUE - NEW
480025
480031
HHW DOOR TO DOOR COLLECTION SERVICE
PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE / DISINCENTIVE - NEW
480032

28,972,200
11,796,200
(1,228,600)

29,257,100
11,585,200
(1,096,900)

284,900
(211,000)
131,700
19,800
45,000

FY2012
REVENUES
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
EXPENSE DETAIL BY PROGRAM

FY 2011-2012 APPROVED BUDGET

GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSES BY MAJOR CATEGORY
APPROVED
BUDGET
FY 2011-2012

ACTUAL
FY 2010-2011

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

MID-YEAR
PROJECTION
FY 2011-2012

YTD Spent
Dec. 15, 2011

Variance

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
520305

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

551,386

491,600

240,607

501,600

10,000

520306

AB 939 PROGRAM STAFF

584,949

684,100

308,645

667,800

(16,300)

520328

EMPLOYEE RECRUITMENT/HR SUPPORT

520337

PEO COST (HR & PR FEES)

1,438

5,000

4,000

5,000

-

20,733

21,600

9,307

21,600

(10,000)

520312

BOARD COUNSEL

26,114

40,000

10,828

30,000

520300

BOARD MEETINGS & RECORDINGS

15,514

5,000

2,542

6,000

520310

ACCOUNTING SERVICES

107,004

105,000

51,000

102,000

(3,000)

1,000

520334

INFORMATION SYSTEMS

40,641

29,500

17,647

32,000

2,500

520338

WEBSITE

12,637

10,100

5,055

10,100

-

520301

ANNUAL FINANCIAL AUDIT

9,013

8,500

4,640

8,500

-

520701

D&O INSURANCE

19,237

35,000

22,798

23,000

(12,000)

520202

BANK FEES

520203

RENT

520204

PRINTING AND POSTAGE

520107
520905

UTILITIES & PHONE
OFFICE/TENANT IMPROVEMENTS

7,879

5,000

6,412

7,800

2,800

47,444

48,000

24,066

48,476

476

207

200

38

150

(50)

15,260
2,876

17,000
3,000

5,390
1,110

13,000
2,250

(4,000)
(750)

520201

OFFICE SUPPLIES

18,681

17,000

8,133

17,000

-

520215

OFFICE EQUIPMENT COSTS

18,743

18,500

18,636

25,000

6,500

520504

PUBLICATIONS & PUBLIC NOTICES

2,088

2,000

-

1,000

(1,000)

520501

PROFESSIONAL DUES & MEMBERSHIPS

1,006

2,000

428

1,500

(500)

520801

VEHICLE MILEAGE & TOLLS

158

350

21

100

(250)

520105

CELL PHONES

6,091

5,500

2,195

5,000

(500)

520503
520502

CONFERENCE & MEETINGS
TRAINING

8,685
3,362

10,000
4,000

6,637
1,379

10,000
4,000

-

520511

SPONSORSHIPS & DONATIONS

9,240

9,500

1,500

8,500

(1,000)

522706

COMPUTER PURCHASE

3,000

6,500

8,968

16,600

10,100

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE
CONTRACT COMPLIANCE AND SUPPORT RATES

$

520307
RATE REVIEW
TOTAL RATE REVIEW
CONTRACTOR
520308
520309
520309

HCM01

1,533,384

$

1,583,950

$

761,982

$

1,567,976

$

(15,974)

194,100
194,100

30,000
30,000

24,887
24,887

60,000
60,000

30,000
30,000

FACILITY IMPROVEMENT OVERSIGHT
BUSINESS CONSULTANT/HF&H

21,325

30,000

-

25,000

(5,000)

-

-

CONTRACT MANAGEMENT SUPPORT

3,000

-

600

-

-

1,200

1,200
(20,000)

520309

HCN01

CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS/LEGAL REVIEW

-

30,000

-

10,000

520309

HCS02

COLLECTION SERVICES FRANCHISE ADMIN.

99,512

165,000

35,023

165,000

520309

HCS03

PUBLIC EDUCATION FOR COLLECTION SVCS ROLLOUT

2,032

2,032

2,032

520309

HCS1B

-

-

520309

HSHOR

-

-

590,302

-

FACILITY RFP & IMPLEMENTATION

21,624

-

SHOREWAY REMEDIATION LEGAL & TECHNICAL

48,997

-

520329

ANNUAL RSMC PERFORMANCE HEARING

520336

QUARTERLY LOAD CONTAMINATION MONITORING

TOTAL CONTRACTOR
TOTAL CONTRACT COMPLIANCE & SUPPORT

(0)

37,849
$

822,610
1,016,710

-

120,000
$

345,000
375,000

-

11,374
$

49,029
73,915

-

110,000
$

313,232
373,232

(10,000)
$

(31,768)
(1,768)

FY2012
EXPENDITURES
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
EXPENSE DETAIL BY PROGRAM

FY 2011-2012 APPROVED BUDGET

GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSES BY MAJOR CATEGORY
APPROVED
BUDGET
FY 2011-2012

ACTUAL
FY 2010-2011

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

MID-YEAR
PROJECTION
FY 2011-2012

YTD Spent
Dec. 15, 2011

Variance

RECYCLING - AB939 COMPLIANCE
RECYCLING ADMINISTRATION
520311

CIWMB ANNUAL REPORTS

34,750

25,000

10,250

25,000

520341

SBWMA ANNUAL REPORT

3,288

5,000

0

5,000

-

-

20,000

0

10,000

(10,000)

520309

HDV01

520604

DIVERSION PROGRAM SUPPORT
EVENT GIVEAWAYS

TOTAL RECYCLING ADMINISTRATION

-

14,500

7,500

0

5,000

(2,500)

52,538

57,500

10,250

45,000

(12,500)

3,850

45,000

(5,000)

LONG RANGE PLAN/DIVERSION PROGRAMS
520340
520340

OPRFP

LONG RANGE PLAN ALTERNATIVES
ORGANICS PROCESSING RFP

520340

MPOTR

MASTER PLAN OUTREACH

520344

SOLAR SYSTEM ENGINEERING AND EVALUATION

TOTAL LONG RANGE PLAN/DIVERSION PROGRAMS

5,545

50,000

1,746

-

23,397

20,000

28,802

-

-

28,802

8,802

5,682

-

5,075

7,500

7,500

36,369

70,000

37,727

81,302

11,302

2,418

15,000

(10,000)

COMMERCIAL PROGRAMS
520331

LARGE EVENT/VENUE CONSULTING

520342

LARGE EVENT/VENUE RECYCLING SERVICES

520608

CLIMATE CHANGE REPORTING & POLICY OPTIONS

520604

COE01

COMMERCIAL RECYCLING TECHNICAL ASSIST

520604

CDRCY

C&D RECYCLING PROGRAM

520604

GREEN

GREEN BUSINESS PROGRAM

520604

MF001

MULTI-FAMILY OUTREACH

TOTAL COMMERCIAL PROGRAMS

1,594

0

11,522

25,000

-

4,803

15,000

1,080

5,000

(10,000)

44,289

300,000

32,407

225,000

(75,000)

-

35,000

0

28,000

(7,000)

4,035

5,000

0

0

12,741

40,000

18,143

65,000

25,000

78,984

420,000

54,048

338,000

(82,000)

(5,000)

RESIDENTIAL PROGRAMS
520604

QLN01

QUARTERLY NEWLESTTER DESIGN/SETUP

520604

QNLPM

QUARTERLY NEWLESTTER PRINTING/MAILING

12,561

20,000

0

10,000

(10,000)

183,783

230,000

74,183

200,000

520604

RES01

(30,000)

RESIDENTIAL OUTREACH PROGRAMS

3,211

166,000

3,984

140,000

520604

(26,000)

COMPS

COMPOST GIVEAWAY

1,023

6,000

0

4,000

520604

(2,000)

HHWUW

HHW DOOR TO DOOR COLLECTION OUTREACH

87,011

85,000

1,319

70,000

(15,000)

(10,287)

(5,000)

520335
520604

CURBSIDE HOUSEHOLD BATTERY OUTREACH
ECE01

ELECTRONIC COLLECTIONS EVENTS

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL PROGRAMS

8,000

0

3,000

711

4,000

0

2,000

(2,000)

278,014

519,000

79,486

429,000

(90,000)

TOTAL RECYCLING - AB939 COMPLIANCE

$

445,905

$

1,066,500

$

181,511

$

893,302

$

(173,198)

SUBTOTAL SBWMA PROGRAM BUDGET

$

2,995,999

$

3,025,450

$

1,017,408

$

2,834,510

$

(190,940)

COLLECTION OPERATIONS
522710
HHW DOOR TO DOOR COLLECTION SERVICES
522711
CURBSIDE HOUSEHOLD BATTERY RECYCLING SERVICES
TOTAL COLLECTION OPERATIONS
TOTAL SBWMA PROGRAM BUDGET

$

358,504

408,600

174,624

428,400

19,800

15,285
373,789

60,000
468,600

0
174,624

60,000
488,400

19,800

3,369,788

$

3,494,050

$

1,192,031

$

3,322,910

$

(171,140)

FY2012
EXPENDITURES
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
EXPENSE DETAIL BY PROGRAM

FY 2011-2012 APPROVED BUDGET

GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSES BY MAJOR CATEGORY
APPROVED
BUDGET
FY 2011-2012

ACTUAL
FY 2010-2011

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY
SHOREWAY OPERATIONS
522701
OPERATING CONTRACT - ALLIED

MID-YEAR
PROJECTION
FY 2011-2012

YTD Spent
Dec. 15, 2011

Variance

13,901,342

1,109,500

833,675

1,330,800

221,300

522712

OPERATOR COMPENSATION - SBR

6,709,339

13,569,200

4,848,048

14,428,500

859,300

522713

DISPOSAL & PROCESSING COSTS
BUYBACK PAYMENTS -- NEW 7/1/11

6,538,836

12,083,300

5,472,502

12,802,000

1,099,100

200,237

597,000

(502,100)
(10,000)

522717
522718

EDUCATION CENTER OPERATIONS -- NEW 7/1/11

522716

MAINTENANCE - OX MTN TIPPER

520710

INSURANCE SHOREWAY

522714

SHOREWAY FACILITY COST

520901

SHOREWAY MRF EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE > $10k

521104

DEBT SERVICE BOND INTEREST

521117

AMORTIZATION OF BOND ISSUANCE

520324
522702

TAXES (SEWER)
FRANCHISE FEE

-

80,000

5,035

70,000

10,413

40,000

32,342

65,000

25,000

121,848

281,500

26,104

248,500

(33,000)

1,028

90,000

1,325

-

40,000

-

3,177,900

529,644

3,177,900

-

38,893
1,356,442

46,400
1,379,700

13,779
580,642

26,400
1,393,200

(20,000)
13,500

32,979,058

32,996,600

12,543,333

34,159,300

-

(90,000)

20,000

(20,000)

22,222

TOTAL SHOREWAY OPERATIONS
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

718,700

$

36,348,846

-

$

36,490,650

$

13,735,364

$

37,482,210

1,162,700
$

991,560

FY2012
EXPENDITURES
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STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Marshall Moran, Finance Manager
January 26, 2012 Board of Director’s Meeting
Resolution Accepting the Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Annual Financial Statements

Recommendation
Staff recommends the Board approve the attached Resolution No. 2012-01, accepting the South Bayside Waste
Management Authority’s audited Annual Financial Statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011 as
prepared by the SBWMA’s audit firm, Lance Soll & Lunghard, LLP.
Analysis
The financial statements of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority for fiscal year ending June 30, 2011,
have been prepared by the City of San Carlos Administrative Services Department and examined by the
independent auditing firm of Lance Soll & Lunghard, LLP and SBWMA staff. It is the unqualified opinion of the
firm that the financial statements present fairly the financial position of the SBWMA as of June 30, 2011, and that
the financial statements were prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
The purpose of the financial statements is to present a summary of the financial position of the Authority. The
final step in the formal process of preparing these financial statements is to transmit them to the Board for its
acceptance. The financial statements have previously been sent to the Board members on December 13, 2011
and are also shown in Exhibit A.
Overview of The Financial Statements
The annual report consists of two parts – management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) and the basic financial
statements. The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data.
The financial statements include two important schedules that present financial data for the SBWMA as a whole:
The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. These two
statements report the SBWMA’s assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses and changes in net assets. These
statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most
private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of
when cash is received or paid.
Financial Condition Highlights
Net assets of the SBWMA’s activities increased $3.4 million to $24.8 million. Unrestricted net assets – the part of
net assets that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants,
enabling legislation, or other legal requirements – changed from $6.2 million at June 30, 2010 to $9.2 million at
the June 30, 2011. Unrestricted net assets are used to fund the Board designated reserves as shown in the
FY2012 budget documents. The Net Asset increase of $3.0 million is due to higher revenue including higher
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commodity prices and lower Operating Expenses as the higher costs during the Master Plan construction came to
an end.
General Operating Results
The operating results for FY2011 and FY2010 were as follows:
Operating Revenues

FY2011
$40,007,400

FY2010
$36,289,700

Operating Expense

$36,561,300

$37,859,700

Operating
Income
<Loss>
Non-Operating Loss

$3,446,100

($1,570,000)

($15,300)

($946,000)

Net Asset Change

$3,430,900

($2,516,000)

Long-Term Debt
At the end of the current fiscal year, the SBWMA had bond debt outstanding of $56,694,700 after the sale of the
2009 revenue bonds for Master Plan improvements and the defeasance of the 2000 bonds.
Outstanding Debt
Activities
Revenue Bonds

FY2011
$56,687,200

FY2010
$56,694,000

Payment of principal on the 2009 bonds begins on September 1, 2012 which is why the debt balance shows only
a minor change. Additional information on the SBWMA’s long-term debt can be found in the notes (5) to the
accompanying financial statements.
Fiscal Impact
There is no financial impact associated with the adoption of this Resolution.
Attachments:
Resolution 2012-02 Accepting the Authority’s FY 2010-2011 Financial Statements
Exhibit A - Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Annual Financial Statements
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RESOLUTION NO. 2012-02
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ACCEPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2010-2011 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WHEREAS, the South Bayside Waste Management Authority contracted with the audit firm of Lance Soll
& Lunghard, LLP to conduct an audit of the Agency’s financial records in accordance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34; and
WHEREAS, the financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011 as prepared by said firm
have been completed and are attached as Exhibit A; and
WHEREAS, it is recommended that the Board accept the financial statements.
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby
adopts the Annual Financial Report as prepared by Lance Soll & Lunghard, LLP for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2011.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the SBWMA Board of Directors hereby accepts the Fiscal
Year 2010-2011 Annual Financial Statements.
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, County of
San Mateo, State of California on the this 26h day of January, 2012, by the following vote:
Agency
Atherton
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

Agency
Menlo Park
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo
West Bay Sanitary Dist

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2012-01 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting
of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 26, 2012.
ATTEST:

Brian Moura, Chairperson of SBWMA

____________________________________
Cyndi Urman, Board Secretary
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MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
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Lance Soll & Lunghard, LLP
203 North Brea Blvd
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Brea, CA 92821
41185 Golden Gate Circle
Suite 103
Murrieta, CA 92562
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To Members of the Board of Directors of the
South Bayside Waste Management Authority
San Carlos, California
We have audited the statement of net assets of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (the
“Authority”), San Carlos, California, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2011, and the related
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets, and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the net
assets of the Authority, as of June 30, 2011, and the results of its operations and cash flows for the years
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 4, 2011, on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for

Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP 203 North Brea Boulevard Suite 203 Brea, CA 92821 TEL: 714.672.0022 Fax: 714.672.0331 www.lslcpas.com
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To Members of the Board of Directors of the
South Bayside Waste Management Authority
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Brea, California
October 4, 2011
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2011

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This annual report consists of two parts:
x management’s discussion and analysis (this section) and;
x the basic financial statements.
The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data.
The following discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the South Bayside Waste
Management Authority (SBWMA) provides an overview of the SBWMA’s financial activities
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. It should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements identified in the accompanying table of contents.
Reporting the SBWMA
The accompanying financial tables present financial data for the SBWMA which compare
current year activity to prior year activity to provide guidance on how the financial picture has
changed. The Statement of Net Assets, Table 1, and the Statement of Activities, Table 2, include
all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting
used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken
into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. Also, the SBWMA has only one cash
fund for operations and a project fund containing remaining proceeds of the bond sale used for
the capital building project.
These two tables report the SBWMA’s net assets and changes in them. The SBWMA’s net assets
– the difference between assets and liabilities – is one way to measure the SBWMA’s financial
health, or financial position. Over time, increases and decreases in the SBWMA’s net assets are
one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A summary of the statement of net assets follows:
Table 1
Net Assets

Current and other assets
Capital assets
Total assets
Long-term debt outstanding
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of debt
Unrestricted
Total net assets

JPA Activities
FY 2011
FY 2010
$ 25,863,687
$ 42,370,801
64,131,415
40,999,811
89,995,102
83,370,612
56,687,247
8,515,936
65,203,183

56,694,747
5,314,800
62,009,547

15,589,135
9,202,784
$ 24,791,919

15,161,321
6,199,744
$ 21,361,065
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Analysis of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2011, the South Bayside Waste Management Authority has total assets of $90.0
million and total liabilities of $65.2 million resulting in net assets totaling $24.8 million.
The increase in net assets is an indication that the overall financial position of the Authority
increased during the year by $3.4 million as indicated in the Statement of Activities Table 2
below. The increase is attributed to higher revenue from higher tip fees and better commodity
prices and lower operating expenses as we transition from construction related interim operating
expenses to the new facility and the new operating contract with expenses based on volume
rather than fixed cost plus contract that ended on December 31, 2010.
The Authority’s Net Assets, Table 1, as of June 30, 2011 are comprised of the following:
x

x
x

x
x

x

x

Cash and Investments totaling $21.2 million. This amount includes $8.1 million of
bond proceeds held by fiscal agents and $13.1 million of pooled cash and other
investments for operations. The majority of these amounts were held in short term
investments as outlined in Note 2 to the financial statements.
Other assets include receivables totaling $4.1 million and interest receivables.
The largest portion of the Authority’s assets totaling $64.1 million represents its
investment in capital assets. These assets are land, buildings, equipment and
infrastructure less accumulated depreciation. These assets are primarily located at the
Shoreway Environmental Center.
Liabilities totaling $8.5 million include general accounts payable and interest payable
totaling $7.0 million and Shoreway environmental remediation of $1.5 million.
Long term debt totaling $56.7 million is primarily composed of Solid Waste System
Revenue Bonds which were issued to finance the construction of a new Materials
Recovery Facility (MRF) building, expanded Transfer Station building and new MRF
recycling equipment.
Net capital assets, net of related debt, $15.6 million, represents the Authority’s
investment in infrastructure and other capital assets, net of amounts borrowed to
finance that investment. Therefore, these funds are not available for spending. It
should be noted that even though the Authority’s capital assets are reported net of
related debt, the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources because capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
Unrestricted net assets totaling $9.2 million represent the part of net assets that can be
used to finance operations. Included in the $9.2 unrestricted is $3.6 million that has
been designated by the Board to be used for specific reserves as identified in Table 3.
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A summary of the statement of activities follows:
Table 2
Statement of Activities
JPA Activities
FY 2011
FY 2010
Operating Revenues
Charges for services
Commodity Revenue
Other
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
Shoreway Operations
SBWMA Program Administration
Franchise Fee - Transfer Station
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Income
Interest Expense
Amortization expense
Unclaimed funds
Loss on retirement of capital assets
Total Non-Operating Expenses
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Beginning net assets
Ending net assets

$ 28,660,638
10,719,422
627,347
40,007,407

$ 27,479,291
8,691,557
118,803
36,289,651

31,828,593
3,171,983
1,356,442
204,252
36,561,270

33,499,718
2,945,232
1,248,318
166,411
37,859,679

3,446,137

(1,570,028)

(6,575)
7,500
(22,222)
6,014
(15,283)
3,430,854
21,361,065
$ 24,791,919

15,668
(457,829)
(107,768)
(396,214)
(946,143)
(2,516,171)
23,877,236
$ 21,361,065

The Statement of Activities presents program revenues and expenses. All of these are elements
in the Changes in Net Assets summarized above.
As of June 30, 2011, the Authority had total net assets of $24.8 million. This amount is a
increase of $3.4 million or 15.9% from the total assets of $21.4 million reported in the prior year.
The net assets (financial position) of the Authority changed as a result of the revenue and
expense fluctuations described below.
x

Total operating revenues increased by $3.7 million or 10.2%. This increase is
primarily due to higher tip fee revenue ($1.2 M), higher commodity revenue from
higher prices ($2.0 M), and higher household hazardous waste program revenue as
more cities enrolled in the program.
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x

x

Total Shoreway Operations expenses decreased by $1.7 million or 5.1%. This
decrease is primarily due to the change from the Allied cost plus operating contract
ending December 31, 2010 to the new contract with SBR at a fixed rate per ton
adjusted by changes in annual indexes and collective bargaining rates. As tonnage has
declined, SBR is paid less versus Allied’s cost plus contract would not have reflected
lower cost on lower tonnage. Total other operating expenses increased by $0.4
million or 9.1% due primarily to the increase in program administration expense and
higher franchise fees paid to the City of San Carlos.
Total net non-operating expenses decreased by $0.9 million or 100.0% due primarily
to the write off of the MRF equipment and building in the prior year and the
defeasance of the old bond and the issuance of the new bond.

In 2002, the Board established a reserve policy to protect the short and long-term financial
operation of the Authority. In October 2009 the Board approved a new reserve policy.
Table 3 below reflects the amount of reserves that have been designated by the Board.
Table 3
Fund & Reserve Balances

Invested in assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted
Operating Reserve
Unrestricted
Total Unresticted
Total Fund Balance

JPA Activities
FY 2011
FY 2010
$ 15,589,135
$ 15,161,321
3,649,065
5,553,719
9,202,784
$ 24,791,919

4,090,915
2,108,829
6,199,744
$ 21,361,065

CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)
Table 4
Capital Assets

Land
Buildings and system
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Total Accumulated depreciation
Total Net Capital Assets

JPA Activities
FY 2011
FY 2010
$ 14,000,000
$ 14,000,000
4,340,224
4,141,075
1,819,150
1,717,393
48,618,890
25,583,940
(4,646,849)
(4,442,597)
$ 64,131,415
$ 40,999,811
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The major addition to capital assets was the increase in construction in progress related to the
Shoreway Master Plan spending on planning, design, engineering, construction and the purchase
of new MRF equipment for the Shoreway capital project.
Additional information on the capital assets can be found in Note (4) of the financial statements.
LONG-TERM DEBT
At the end of the current fiscal year, the Authority had bonded debt outstanding of $56,687,247.
Table 5
Outstanding Debt

2000 Revenue Bonds
2009A Revenue Bond
2009B Revenue Bond
Net Premium 2009A

FY 2011
53,500,000
3,000,000
187,247
$ 56,687,247
$

FY 2010
53,500,000
3,000,000
194,747
$ 56,694,747
$

Additional information on the Authority’s long-term debt can be found in the Note (5) to the
accompanying financial statements.
Subsequent Events
The Master Plan construction project is proceeding with an estimated completion date of June
2012 at which time the costs will be reclassed from construction in progress to the appropriate
asset category. The project capital cost in total remains on budget including the contingency
amount.
Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide our member agencies, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the Authority’s finances and to show the Authority’s accountability for the
revenues and expenditures in the course of doing business. If you have questions about this report
or need additional financial information, contact the Executive Director, South Bayside Waste
Management Authortiy, 610 Elm Street, San Carlos, California 94070.
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and investments for operations
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Prepaid Items

$

Total Current Assets

13,053,318
4,024,984
78,346
6,525
17,163,173

Noncurrent Assets
Cash and cash equivalents with fiscal agent
Unamortized bond issuance costs
Capital assets
Land
Construction in progress
Building
Equipment
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets

8,144,967
555,547
14,000,000
48,618,890
4,340,224
1,819,150
(4,646,849)
64,131,415

Total Noncurrent Assets

72,831,929

Total Assets

89,995,102

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Interest payable
Unearned revenue
Current portion of compensated absences

3,721,573
2,202,622
1,059,288
18,993
31,711

Total Current Liabilities

7,034,187

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences due in more than one year
Long-term debt due in more than one year

1,468,159
13,590
56,687,247

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

58,168,996

Total Liabilities

65,203,183

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

See independent auditor's report and notes to basic financial statements.

15,589,135
9,202,784
$

24,791,919
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services
Commodity revenue
Other

$

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

28,660,638
10,719,422
627,347
40,007,407

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Shoreway operations
SBWMA program administration
Franchise fee - transfer station
Depreciation

31,828,593
3,171,983
1,356,442
204,252

Total Operating Expenses

36,561,270

Operating (Loss)

3,446,137

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income
Interest expense
Amortization expense
Unclaimed funds

(6,575)
7,500
(22,222)
6,014

Net Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)

(15,283)

Change in Net Assets

3,430,854

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

See independent auditor's report and notes to basic financial statements.

21,361,065
$

24,791,919
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers
Payments to suppliers

$

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

37,167,720
(32,706,816)
4,460,904

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
(Increase) decrease in cash and investments with fiscal agent
Interest received

22,711,290
26,422

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities

22,737,712

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital asset acquisition and construction

(23,335,856)

Net Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

(23,335,856)

NET INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

3,862,760

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Other nonoperating revenues
Change in assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivables
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences

9,190,558
$

13,053,318

$

3,446,137

204,252
6,014
(2,435,036)
38,401
3,599,071
(410,665)
18,993
(6,263)

Total Adjustments
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Amortization related to long-term debt

See independent auditor's report and notes to basic financial statements.

1,014,767

$

4,460,904

$

14,722
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011
Note 1:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Organization
The South Bayside Waste Management Authority (the Authority) is a joint powers
authority formed on October 13, 1999 for the purpose of joint ownership, financing and
administration of the Facilities, currently the San Carlos Transfer Station and the San
Mateo Recyclery; and the planning, administration management, review, monitoring,
enforcement and reporting of solid waste, recyclable material and plant material
collection activities within Authority's service area.
Members of the Authority currently include the cities of Atherton, Belmont, Burlingame,
East Palo Alto, Foster City, Hillsborough, Menlo Park, Redwood City, San Carlos, San
Mateo, as well as the West Bay Sanitation District and the County of San Mateo.
The Authority is controlled by a twelve member board consisting of one representative
from each member. None of the member entities exercise specific control over the
budgeting and financing of the Authority's activities beyond their representation on the
board. Accounting services are provided by the City of San Carlos.
Through the operation of franchise agreements with each member, Republic Services,
Inc. (formerly Allied Waste Management) collects fees charged for the use of the
Facilities and remits them to the Authority. Pursuant to an Operations Agreement with the
Authority, Republic Services, Inc. will operate the Facilities and be paid compensation
based on costs, a provision for profit and incentives for cost savings and performance
through December 31, 2010. Effective January 1, 2011 South Bay Recycling began
operating the Facilities and is paid compensation based on fees per ton. The fees are
adjusted annually based on CPI indexes and CBA agreement wage and benefit rate
changes until the current CBA agreements expire in 2013 at which time they revert to
index adjustments. In addition, there are various disposal and processing vendors such
as BFI, Browning Ferris, Recology Grover, Zanker Road and Bio-Fuel Systems. In
addition, to assist in the transition from the prior operator to the new, a third party SmurfitStone was utilized.
b. Enterprise Fund Accounting
The Authority is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its
activities for financial statement purposes. Enterprise funds are used to account for
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs and expenses,
including depreciation, of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.
An enterprise fund is used to account for activities similar to those in the private sector,
where the proper matching of revenues and costs is important and the full accrual basis
of accounting is required. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities of the
enterprise are recorded on its balance sheet, all revenues are recognized when earned
and all expenses, including depreciation, are recognized when incurred. Enterprise fund
equity includes retained earnings and contributed capital.
The Authority follows those Financial Accounting Standard Board Statements issued
before November 30, 1989 which do not conflict with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statements.
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2011
Note 1:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
c. Capital Assets
All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual
historical cost is not available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair
market value on the date contributed. Expenditures which materially increase the value
or life of capital assets plant assets are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining
useful life of the asset.
All capital assets with limited useful lives are depreciated over their estimated useful
lives. The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among
all users over the life of these assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each
year represents that year's pro rata share of the cost of capital assets.
Depreciation is provided using the straight line method which means the cost of the asset
is divided by its expected useful life in years and the result is charged to expense each
year until the asset is fully depreciated. The Authority has assigned the useful lives listed
below to capital assets:

Building
Equipment

10-40 years
5-20 years

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase is reflected in the capitalized
value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the
same period.
d. Compensated Absences
Compensated absences comprise unpaid vacation which is accrued as earned. All
employees who hold full-time regular positions are entitled to 15 working days' vacation
pay upon successful completion of their first year of continuous service. The accrual rate
increases as length of service exceeds 5 years. Maximum accumulation of vacation is
two years' vacation accrual. Upon termination or retirement, full-time employees are
entitled to receive compensation at their current base salary for all unused vacation
leave. The liability for compensated absences is determined annually.
Compensated absences are liquidated by the General Fund.
e. Retirement and Deferred Compensation Plans
The Authority offers its employees a retirement plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 401a. The employer contribution to the 401a is 10% plus a
match up to 2% of the employee contribution.
The Authority also offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457b. Pursuant to the IRC subsection
(g), all amounts of compensation deferred under the deferred compensation plan, all
property, or rights are solely the property and rights of the employee and beneficiaries of
the Plan. Deferred compensation funds are not subject to the claims of the Authority’s
general creditors; consequently, the assets and related liabilities of the plan are not
included within the Authority’s financial statements.
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2011
Note 2:

Cash and Investments
The Authority pools cash from all sources except cash and investments held by fiscal agents
so that it can be invested at the maximum yield consistent with safety and liquidity, while
individual funds can make expenditures at any time.
a. Policies
California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government
securities with a market value of 110% of the Authority's cash on deposit, or first trust
deed mortgage notes with a market value of 150% of the deposit, as collateral for these
deposits. Under California Law this collateral is held in a separate investment pool by
another institution in the Authority's name and places the Authority ahead of general
creditors of the institution.
The Authority invests in individual investments and in investment pools. Individual
investments are evidenced by specific identifiable securities instruments, or by an
electronic entry registering the owner in the records of the institution issuing the security,
called the book entry system. In order to increase security, the Authority employs the
Trust Department of a bank as the custodian of certain Authority managed investments,
regardless of their form.
The Authority's investments are carried at fair value, as required by generally accepted
accounting principles. The Authority adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect
their fair value at each fiscal year end, and it includes the effects of these adjustments in
income for that fiscal year.
b. Classification
Cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below, based
on whether or not their use is restricted under the terms of Authority debt instruments or
agreements.
Statements of Net Assets
Cash and investments for operations
Cash and investments with fiscal agent
Total Cash and Investments

$

13,053,318
8,144,967

$

21,198,285

Cash and investments for operations is used in preparing proprietary fund statements of
cash flows because these assets are highly liquid and are expended to liquidate liabilities
arising during the year.
c. Investment Authorized by the California Government Code and the Authority’s
Investment Policy
The Authority's Investment Policy and the California Government Code allow the
Authority to invest in the following, provided the credit ratings of the issuers are
acceptable to the Authority; and approved percentages and maturities are not exceeded.
The table below also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code, or
the Authority's Investment Policy where the Authority's Investment Policy where is more
restrictive.
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2011
Note 2:

Cash and Investments (Continued)

Authorized Investment Type
State of California Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF Pool)

Maximum
Maturity
Upon
Demand

Minimum
Credit
Quality
N/A

Maximum
in
Portfolio
$40,000,000
per account

Investment
In One
Issuer
N/A

San Mateo County Investment Pool

Upon
Demand

N/A

$40,000,000
per account

N/A

U.S. Treasury Bonds, Notes and Bills

5 Years

N/A

100%.

N/A

U.S. Government Agency and Federal
Agency Securities

5 Years

N/A

100%

N/A

Bankers Acceptances

180 Days

N/A

30%

(A), (B)

Commercial Paper

270 Days

AA

25%

(A), (B)

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit

5 Years

N/A

30%

(A), (B)

Time Certificates of Deposit - Banks
or Savings and Loans

5 Years

N/A

25%

(A), (B)

Medium Term Corporate Notes

5 Years

AA

30%

(A), (B)

(A)
(B)

5% of outstanding paper of issuing corporation
5% of the portfolio in one corporation

d. Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements
The Authority must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with trustees or
fiscal agents under the terms of certain debt issues. These funds are unexpended bond
proceeds or are pledged reserves to be used if the Authority fails to meet its obligations
under these debt issues. The California Government Code requires these funds to be
invested in accordance with Authority resolutions, bond indentures or State statutes. The
table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by
fiscal agents. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements:

Authorized Investment Type
Direct obligations of the Department of the Treasury of the
United States
Fully guaranteed obligations of federal agencies
Direct obligations of FNMA, FHLMC, REFCORP, Federal
Home Loan, AMBAC Assurance
U.S. dollar denominated deposit accounts
Commercial Paper
Money market fund
Pre-refunded municipal obligations
General obligations of States
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund
San Mateo County Investment Pool

Minimum
Credit Quality
None
None
AAA
A-1+
AA
AAA
None
A2/A
None
None
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2011
Note 2:

Cash and Investments (Continued)
e. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. Normally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The Authority
generally manages its interest rate risk by holding investments to maturity.
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Authority's investments (including
investments held by bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the
following table that shows the distribution of the Authority's investments by maturity or
earliest call date:
12 Months
or less

Investment Type
San Mateo County Investment Pool

$

12 to 25
Months

2,075,395

$

Total
-

$

2,075,395

U.S. Government-Sponsored
Enterprise Agencies Non-callable
California Local Agency Investment Fund
Money Market
Total Investments
Total Cash in Bank and Cash on Hand
Total Cash and Investments

-

3,904,292

3,904,292

10,157,315

-

10,157,315

2,293,493

-

2,293,493

$ 14,526,203

$ 3,904,292

18,430,495
2,767,790
$ 21,198,285

Local Agency Investment Fund
The Authority is a participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the
Treasurer of the State of California. The Authority reports its investment in LAIF at the fair
value amount provided by LAIF, which is the same as the value of the pool share. The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF,
which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Included in LAIF's investment portfolio
are collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed
securities, loans to certain state funds, and floating rate securities issued by federal
agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, United States Treasury Notes and Bills,
and corporations.
San Mateo County Investment Fund
The Authority is a voluntary participant in the San Mateo County Investment Fund
(SMCIF) that is regulated by California Government Code Section 53600 under the
oversight of the treasurer of the County of San Mateo. The Authority reports its
investment in SMCIF at the fair value amount provided by SMCIF. The balance available
for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by SMCIF, which are
recorded on an amortized cost basis. Included in SMCIF's investment portfolio are U.S.
Treasury Notes, obligations issued by agencies of the U.S. Government, LAIF, corporate
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2011
Note 2:

Cash and Investments (Continued)
notes, commercial paper, collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed
securities, other asset-backed securities, and floating rate securities issued by federal
agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, and corporations. The Authority reports its
investments in SMCIF at the fair value amounts provided by SMCIF, which is the same
as the value of the pool share.
f.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization.
On Aug. 5, 2011, Standard & Poor's Ratings Services lowered its long-term sovereign
credit rating on the United States of America to AA+ from AAA. As a result, on
Aug. 8, 2011, Standard & Poor's Ratings Services lowered its issuer credit ratings and
related issue ratings on various Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank,
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to AA+ from AAA. The Authority invests in both LAIF and
the SMCIF, which invest in various underlying securities, including the federal agency
securities listed above. While neither LAIF nor the SMCIF is rated, the federal agency
securities are, and these have been affected by this rating change.
Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2011 for each investment type as
provided by Moody's ratings:
Investment Type
U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprises Agencies
Non-callable
Money Market (U.S. Securities
Totals

AAA

Total

$ 3,904,292
2,293,493
6,197,785

$ 3,904,292
2,293,493
6,197,785
10,157,316
2,075,394

California Local Agency Investment Fund
San Mateo County Investment Pool
Total Investments

18,430,495

Total Cash in bank and cash on hand

2,767,790
$ 21,198,285

Total Cash and Investments

g. Concentration of Credit Risk
The Authority's investment policy contains certain limitations on the amount that can be
invested in any one issuer. In certain categories, these limitations surpass those required
by California Government Code Sections 53600 et seq. Investments in any one issuer,
other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools, that
represent 5% or more of total Entity-wide investments are as follows at June 30, 2011:

Issuer
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp.

Investment Type
Federal agency securities

Reported
Amount
$ 3,904,292

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/26/12
AGENDA ITEM: 4C - EXHIBIT A - p19

SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2011
Note 3:

Capital Assets and Facilities Operations
Pursuant to a sales agreement with Republic Services, Inc., the Authority purchased land,
and buildings and personal property amounting to $14 million and $5.228 million,
respectively. These facilities comprise the San Carlos Transfer Station and San Mateo
Recyclery. The Authority signed an agreement to lease back the facilities to Republic
Services, Inc. which operates them. This agreement expired on December 31, 2006 and the
Authority has extended the agreement until December 31, 2010. During the year ended
June 30, 2011, as of December 31, 2010 the Authority paid $13,901,342 to Republic
Services, Inc. to operate the facilities. Effective January 1, 2011 through June 30, 2011 the
Authority paid $6,709,339 to South Bay Recycling to operate the Facility, $6,538,836 to
various processing vendors and $4,278,696 to Smurfit-Stone for interim operations during the
transition.

Note 4:

Capital Assets
Changes in capital assets were as follows for fiscal 2010-2011:
Balance
July 1, 2010
Business-type activities
Capital assets not depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress
Total non-depreciable assets

$ 14,000,000
25,583,940

$

Additions

Retirements

23,034,950

$

Balance
June 30, 2011

-

$ 14,000,000
48,618,890

39,583,940

23,034,950

-

62,618,890

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Equipment

4,141,075
1,717,393

199,149
101,757

-

4,340,224
1,819,150

Total depreciable assets

5,858,468

300,906

-

6,159,374

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Equipment

(3,190,281)
(1,252,316)

(141,185)
(63,067)

-

(3,331,466)
(1,315,383)

Total accumulated depreciation

(4,442,597)

(204,252)

-

(4,646,849)

1,415,871

96,654

-

1,512,525

$ 40,999,811

$ 23,131,604

-

$ 64,131,415

Net depreciable assets
Capital assets, net

$
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2011
Note 5:

Revenue Bonds
The Authority's debt issues and transactions are summarized below and discussed in detail
thereafter.
Balance
July 1, 2010

2009A Solid Waste
System Revenue Bonds
2009B Solid Waste
System Revenue Bonds

$ 53,500,000
3,000,000
$ 56,500,000

Additions

Retirements

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

Add: Unamortized premiums/discounts
Net Long-Term Debt

Balance
June 30, 2011
$

53,500,000

$

3,000,000
56,500,000

$

187,247
56,687,247

Due within
one year
$

-

$

-

a. Solid Waste Enterprise Revenue Bonds Series 2009A
On September 2, 2009, the Authority issued $53,500,000 of Solid Waste Enterprise
Revenue Bonds Series 2009A. The 2009A Bonds were issued to pay for the construction
and renovation of a solid waste materials recovery facility and transfer station and related
equipment, to fund a Reserve Fund, to fund capitalized interest, and to fund certain
working capital and pay other costs, including issuance costs.
The series 2009A bonds are solely payable from and secured by the net revenues and
debt service reserve fund held by the Authority's trustee, as defined under the bond
indenture. Net Revenues means, for any period, all of the revenues during such period
less all of the maintenance and operation costs during such period. Revenues mean all
gross income and revenue received or receivable by the Authority.
Principal payments are payable annually on September 1, commencing
September 1, 2012. The bond bears interest at 3.5%-6.0% which is payable
semi-annually on September 1 and March 1, commencing on March 1, 2010.
The bond is secured by a pledge of the Authority's Net Revenue as defined under the
bond indenture. The pledge of future net revenue ends upon repayment of the 2009A
bonds in the amount $53.5 million in remaining debt service on the bonds which is
scheduled to occur in 2036.
For fiscal year 2011, gross revenues including operating revenues and non-operating
interest earnings amounted to $40,014,907 and; operating and maintenance costs,
including operating expenses, transfers out for overhead and administrative cost but not
interest, depreciation or amortization and amounted to $36,357,018. As a result, the net
revenue (loss) for fiscal 2011 amounted to a loss of $3,657,889.
b. Solid Waste Enterprise Revenue Bonds Series 2009B
On September 2, 2009, the Authority also issued $3,000,000 of taxable Solid Waste
Enterprise Revenue Bonds Series 2009B.
The series 2009B bonds are solely payable from and secured by the subordinate net
revenues, as defined under the bond indenture. Subordinate net revenues means, for
any period, net revenues during such period remaining after payment of all amounts
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
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JUNE 30, 2011
Note 5:

Revenue Bonds (Continued)
required to be paid pursuant to the senior lien obligations or a senior lien indenture during
such period, in an amount that is equal to debt service on the bonds and any subordinate
parity obligations.
Principal repayment in entirety in the amount of $3,000,000 is due September 14, 2014.
The bond bear interest at 3.5%-6.0% which is payable semi-annually on September 1
and March 1, commencing March 1, 2010.
The bond is secured by a pledge of the Authority's net revenue as defined under the
bond indenture. The pledge of future net revenue ends upon repayment of the 2009B
bonds in the amount of $3 million which is scheduled to occur in 2014.
c. Debt Service Requirements
Annual debt service requirements on the bonds are shown below with specified
repayment terms:

Business-type Activity
For the Year Ending
June 30

Note 6:

Principal

Interest

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017-2021
2022-2026
2027-2031
2032-2036
2037-2041

$

1,095,000
1,150,000
4,205,000
1,270,000
7,160,000
9,165,000
12,185,000
16,380,000
3,890,000

$

3,177,862
3,150,487
3,094,362
2,960,488
2,833,138
13,326,094
12,087,838
9,412,063
6,903,000
690,300

Total

$

56,500,000

$

57,635,632

Insurance
The Authority purchases commercial insurance policies to protect itself from claims arising
from the following types of losses:
Coverage
Limits

Type of Coverage
General Aggregate Limit
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit
Personal and Advertising Injury Limit
Each Occurrence
Damage to Rented Premises Limit
Medical Expense Limit (Any one person)
Hired & Non-Owned Auto Limit
Pollution Legal Liability
Self-Insured Retention (SIR)
Environmental Impact Liability

$

2,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
300,000
25,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
$10,000 SIR
per Incident
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Note 7:

Pollution Remediation
Since 2000, the Authority is the current property owner of 333 Shoreway Road in San Carlos,
which has ground water contamination. However, the County regulator has identified site
operator and former property owner, Allied Waste (Allied), as the responsible party.
There has been an ongoing project to treat ground water contamination for at least six years
that Allied as the responsible party had been paying for. The contamination predates the
ownership of the property by the Authority in 2000. Several sites have been treated except for
one site under the building which remains contaminated and awaits treatment pending
approval of the treatment method by the County. The project for this treatment and
subsequent site monitoring remains outstanding as of June 30, 2011. This project to treat the
contaminated site is in the preliminary stage. Final cost is unknown but estimated to not
exceed $1,500,000 over the next ten years, ending in fiscal 2020.
In fiscal 2010, the Authority and the on-site contractor, Republic Services (formerly Allied
Waste and BFI) signed a settlement and release agreement. As part of the agreement,
Republic Services paid the Authority $1,500,000 as the estimated cost of remediation project.
Remediation cost estimate was negotiated with Allied per methods approved by County
regulators based on input from environmental engineers on remaining cost of work. There
was no known additional cost as of June 30, 2011. As of June 30, 2011, the Authority had
recorded $1,468,159 of accrued liabilities.

Note 8:

Net Assets
The Authority has designated $3,649,065 of the unrestricted net assets for future spending
plans or concerns about the availability of future resources. These designations may be
modified, amended or removed by Authority Board action.
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STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Cliff Feldman, Recycling Programs Manager
January 26, 2012 Board of Directors Meeting
Update on Contractor Auditing: Collection Services and Facility Operations Auditing and
Financial Systems Auditing

Recommendation
This is an informational report and no action is necessary.
Analysis
The Member Agencies Franchise Agreements with Recology San Mateo County (Recology) provide several
provisions related to auditing the company’s operations and compensation related information. A list of these
provisions is provided as Attachment A. In addition, RethinkWaste staff currently is managing an auditing project
with Hilton, Farnkopf and Hobson (HF&H) pertaining to both Recology and South Bay Recycling (SBR) and
recently issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for another financial systems related audit of both contractor’s.
Below is an explanation of these two auditing projects:
HF&H Auditing Project
This project entails conducting an audit of Collection Services (Recology) and Facility Operations (SBR)
Contractor Data, Records, Systems and Reports. RethinkWaste issued an RFP for this project and Hilton,
Farnkopf and Hobson (HF&H) was selected. The scope of work specifically requires HF&H to evaluate and audit
data collection and record keeping, assess and analyze customer service systems and procedures, audit tonnage
reporting, perform a detailed contractor performance evaluation and comprehensive auditing of reports (i.e.,
Monthly, Quarterly and Annual). The project commenced in September 2011 and will be completed in March/April
2012 after submittal and review of both contractors’ first Annual Reports in February 2012. The budget for this
project is $70,000 and staff is working on amending the scope to include an audit of Recology’s customer billings.
HF&H was selected from the three firms that responded to staff’s RFP.
Recology and SBR Financial Systems Audit
This project is planned for March-May 2012 and will entail conducting a detailed audit of all financial related
activities of both contractors. For example, the scope will include a comprehensive audit of revenue
billed/collected, Agency fees billed/collected/paid, and statistics used for cost allocation. The RFP for this project
was recently issued and proposals are due in February. Staff anticipates selecting a contractor and executing a
contract in March. We will request that representatives from two Member Agencies assist staff with evaluating
proposals and selecting a contractor.
Background
The Member Agencies Franchise Agreements with Recology and the Facility Operations agreement with SBR
require the companies to provide services, collect and remit revenue, gather and manage data, and submit
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monthly, quarterly and annual reports. Many of the performance standards are self-reported by Recology and
SBR. The tonnage data is by and large reported by SBR with the exception of the allocation of tonnage to the
Member Agencies which is Recology’s responsiblity. In addition, the financial related data and reporting functions
required by both contractors are handled separately by each company. Staff has budgeted funds for FY 2012 to
proceed with the auditing projects mentioned above.
Attachment
Attachment A – Recology Franchise Agreement Auditing Provisions
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Attachment A
Recology San Mateo County Franchise Agreement
Auditing and Performance Hearing Provisions
Section 7.01.A (Customer Billing)
3.

Bill Format. Contractor shall Bill Customers using a Bill format (i.e., post- card
Billing format or conventional envelope/insert) approved by the Agency, if
Customer does not opt-out by requesting use of the automated Billing and
payment system. Contractor shall promote the website-based Billing and
payment system on all paper Bills sent to Customers. Agency shall have the
right to revise the Billing format (e.g., size, font, frequency, etc.) and to itemize
certain charges and to review the Billing procedures. Contractor shall be
compensated for any cost increases that result from the Agency-directed
change to the Billing format.

4.

Records. Contractor shall maintain, for inspection by the Agency, copies of
Customer Billings and receipts, in chronological order, for a period of five (5)
years after the date of service. Contractor shall maintain those records in
electronic format. SBWMA and Agency staff or representatives shall be given
access to such records upon one (1) Business Day notice.
Agency shall be allowed to access and review Contractor’s Billing systems on
an appointment basis and such access shall not be unreasonably withheld by
Contractor.

Section 7.01.E (Customer Billing)
E.

Review of Billings. Contractor shall review its Billings to Customers, issued
pursuant to Section 7.01.A. The purpose of the review is to determine that the
amount which Contractor is Billing each Customer is correct in terms of the level of
service (i.e., frequency of Collection, size of Container, location of Container) being
provided to such Customer by Contractor. Contractor shall review Customer
accounts not less than once every three (3) calendar years for each Commercial,
Multi-Family Dwelling and SFD Customer, unless Agency shall direct Contractor to
do so more frequently. Contractor shall submit to Agency a written report of the
status of its review annually no later than forty-five (45) Days after the end of each
calendar year. The intent of this Section is for Agency to receive reports on an
annual basis for one-third (1/3) of all Customer accounts, and for all Customer
Page 1 of 6
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accounts to be reviewed every third year of the Agreement. The scope of the
review and the reviewer's work plan shall be submitted to Agency for approval no
later than six (6) months before the submission of the first report.

Section 7.01.F (Customer Billing)
F.

Agency or SBWMA Billing Review. Contractor acknowledges that Agency or
SBWMA may perform, or cause to be performed, Billing reviews periodically.
Contractor agrees to participate and cooperate with SBWMA and Agency and its
agents to accomplish these reviews and conduct any data collection and report
preparation that may be requested. The Contractor’s full cooperation with these
reviews may include, but is not limited to: (i) allowing Agency or SBWMA staff or
consultants to ride along with drivers in Collection vehicles during daily Collection
operations; (ii) providing for interviews of personnel at all levels, with or without
management oversight; (iii) providing reporting related to franchised operations
available through Contractor’s automated systems; and, (iv) adjusting routing, public
information, outreach, or program availability based upon the recommendations of
the audit, if approved by the SBWMA or Agency.

Section 7.07 (Program Evaluation)
7.07

PROGRAM EVALUATION
The Agency may require the Contractor to periodically conduct audits of the Residential
and Commercial Solid Waste, Targeted Recyclable Materials, and Organic Materials
Collection programs to assess one (1) or more of the following performance indicators:
average volume of Targeted Recyclable Materials per set-out per Customer, average
volume of Organic Materials per set-out per Customer, participation level (i.e., number of
Customers setting out Containers per week), Contamination levels, etc. Contractor shall
perform up to five (5) Days of route auditing at no additional cost to the Agency or
Customers once per calendar year. Prior to the program evaluation audit, Agency and
Contractor shall meet and discuss the purpose of the audit and agree on the method,
scope, and data to be provided by the Contractor. If Agency requires more than five (5)
Days of auditing for the purposes of program evaluation, the activity shall be considered
an Agency-directed change in scope and handled in accordance with provisions in
Section 15.12.
If the Contractor does not Collect Multi-Family Dwelling Solid Waste, Targeted
Recyclable Materials, and Organic Materials using dedicated Collection vehicles,
thereby precluding regular and accurate reporting of the Tonnage of Solid Waste,
Targeted Recyclable Materials, and Organic Materials Collected from Multi-Family
Residential Complexes, the Agency may require the Contractor to conduct a semiannual or annual Tonnage assessment that involves separately Collecting, weighing,
and reporting Multi-Family Dwelling Solid Waste, Targeted Recyclable Materials, and
Organic Materials to quantify Tonnage Collected during a given week. This assessment
shall be performed by Contractor at no additional cost to the Agency or Customers.

Page 2 of 6
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If the Agency wants to collect program data, perform field work, conduct route audits to
investigate Customer participation levels and set-out volumes, and/or evaluate
and monitor program results related to Solid Waste, Targeted Recyclable

Materials, and Organic Materials Collected in the Agency by the Contractor, the
Contractor shall cooperate with the Agency and its agent(s), which may include
the SBWMA and its consultants.

Section 7.11 (Environmental Management Program)
7.11

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PROGRAM
Contractor shall implement and maintain an environmental management program
combining several elements to minimize the environmental impacts of its operations in
the Service Area. Contractor shall provide upon request from Agency a description of
topics discussed at its bi-monthly environmental team roundtable and training program
meeting(s) and the semiannual corporate environmental compliance staff meetings.
Contractor shall provide Agency access to its “Norcal’s Environmental and Safety
Tracking” (NEST) system upon request. Contractor shall provide Agency copies of its
internal environmental compliance audits, third-party audits and disposition of corrective
actions, within thirty (30) Days upon request from Agency.

Section 7.12 (Annual Route Assessment)
7.12

ANNUAL ROUTE ASSESSMENT
Contractor shall conduct a route assessment of the Service Area each Rate Year. This
comprehensive route assessment shall require Contractor to assess all of its Solid
Waste, Targeted Recyclable Materials and Organic Materials Collection Customers over
a one (1) week period during the same month each year for the Term. The assessment
is intended to annually confirm and update Contractor’s data related to Customer
accounts, service levels and operations, including, but not limited to: (i) number of
Accounts; (ii) Customer address; (iii) number and type of Containers at each Account;
and (iv) Collection frequency of each Container at each Account; (v) . Bin and Cart lifts;
(vi) Drop Box pulls; (vii) service stops; (viii) route hours per year; and (ix) tonnage
Collected. All service level information related to lifts and pulls will be derived in part
from Contractors database management system. All route labor hours shall be based
on total route hours for routes exclusive to each Agency and Tonnage information shall
be based on actual tons Collected. For routes that service more than one Agency, the
Tonnage Collected on these routes and total route hours shall be allocated to the
respective Agencies based on the type and number of accounts and service levels
attributable to each Agency.
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Section 8.11 (Annual Performance Hearing)
8.11

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE HEARING
A.

Objectives. Agency or SBWMA may hold a public performance hearing in April or
May of each Rate Year, at which time Contractor shall be present and shall
participate by making a presentation and responding to questions. SBWMA shall
convene the hearing to address the positive and negative aspects of Contractor’s
overall performance. The purpose of the hearing may also involve discussion and
review of technological, economic, and regulatory changes in Collection, waste
reduction, Recycling, processing, and Disposal practices that can improve quality of
service; increase waste reduction and diversion; and ensure services are being
provided effectively and economically. Topics for discussion and review at the
performance hearing shall include, but not be limited to: Contractor’s
accomplishments and compliance with various provisions of the Agreement,
services provided, feasibility of providing new services, application of new
technologies, Customer Complaints, possible amendments to this Agreement,
developments in the Applicable Laws and regulations, new initiatives for meeting or
exceeding waste reduction and Recycling goals, regulatory constraints, and
Contractor performance. SBWMA and Contractor may each select additional topics
for discussion at the performance hearing.

B.

Process. Within sixty (60) Days of notification provided by Agency or SBWMA to
Contractor of its intent to conduct a performance hearing, Agency or SBWMA will
submit questions to Contractor pertaining to Contractor’s performance and
Contractor shall submit its written response within thirty (30) days. SBWMA and
Contractor shall meet to discuss the questions and Contractor’s response prior to
submittal by Contractor. SBWMA and Contractor may request from one another
information or documents related to the scheduled public hearing and SBWMA and
Contractor shall provide such information promptly.
In addition to Contractor’s responses to the questions submitted by SBWMA,
Contractor may be required to submit a self-assessment report of Contractor’s
performance and information pertaining to the following:
1.

Recommended Changes or New Services. Changes and/or new services
recommended to improve Agency's ability to meet and/or exceed the Agency’s
waste reduction and recycling goals and those of the Act.

2.

Complaint Records. The reports required by this Agreement regarding
Complaints shall be used as one basis for review. Contractor may submit other
relevant performance information and reports for consideration. Agency may
request Contractor to submit specific information for the hearing. In addition,
any Person may submit comments or Complaints during or before the hearing,
either orally or in writing, and these shall be considered.

3.

Action Plan. Contractor shall prepare and submit an action plan for improving
and/or modifying its Collection services and other services if requested.

Not less than ten (10) Business Days prior to the scheduled hearing date, SBWMA
and Contractor shall exchange any written reports and other documents that will be
provided or presented at the hearing. Not less than five (5) Business Days before
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the scheduled hearing date, SBWMA and Contractor shall ensure their availability to
discuss the content and underlying support for such reports.
SBWMA and Contractor shall attend and participate in the performance hearing.
Contractor may be required to present an oral report on its performance at the
performance hearing.
Contractor’s failure to attend and participate in the
performance hearing and provide an oral presentation upon request; provide a
written response to the questions or request for a self-assessment report submitted
by Agency or SBWMA; or submit an action plan if requested by Agency or SBWMA
may result in Liquidated Damages pursuant to Attachment J.
Within sixty (60) Days after the conclusion of each performance hearing, SBWMA
may issue a report. As a result of the review, Agency may require Contractor to
provide expanded or new services within a reasonable time frame and for
reasonable compensation; and Agency or SBWMA may direct Contractor to take
corrective actions for any performance inadequacies.

Section 9.02.B (Record Keeping)
B.

Inspection of Records. Agency shall have the right to inspect or review the payroll
tax reports, specific documents or records required expressly or by inference
pursuant to this Agreement, or any other similar records or reports of Contractor
that Agency shall deem, in its sole discretion, reasonably necessary to evaluate
annual reports, compensation applications provided for in this Agreement, and
Contractor's performance or other matters related to this Agreement.
The Agency, its auditors and other agents selected by the Agency, shall have the
right, during regular business hours, to conduct unannounced on-site inspections
and review of the records and accounting systems of Contractor and to make
copies of any of Contractor’s documents relevant to this Agreement. Upon request,
Contractor shall arrange for records of Related Party Entities to be made available
to Agency and its official representatives for review, to the extent such records are
reasonably necessary to evaluate annual reports, compensation applications,
Contractor’s performance, or other matters related to this Agreement.

Section 11.04 (Compensation)
11.04 APPLICATION PROCESS FOR CONTRACTOR’S COMPENSATION
A.

Application Date and Content. Contractor shall prepare and submit to Agency and
SBWMA by July 1 of each year, beginning on July 1, 2010, an Application for
determination of Contractor’s Compensation for the next Rate Year.
This
Application will cover all Member Agencies and will allocate total costs to each
Member Agency using the allocation methodology prescribed in Attachment K and
illustrated in Attachment N. Contractor shall provide any additional information
requested by the Agency or by SBWMA during its review of the Application.

B.

Review of Application. The Application shall be reviewed by SBWMA for
accuracy and consistency with the procedures for determining Contractor’s
Compensation specified in this Agreement as described in Attachment K. SBWMA
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shall share with Contractor any factual or calculation errors identified in the
Application and Contractor shall have the opportunity to revise its Application.

Section 11.07 (Compensation)
11.07 RATE-SETTING PROCESS
A.

General. The Agency shall be solely responsible for establishing and adjusting
Rates as described in this Article.

B. Annual Review Process. The Rates shall be reviewed annually by Agency,
commencing with Rate Year One (2011) and continuing through the remaining
Term including any extension periods. The Agency shall adjust Rates as necessary
to generate annual Gross Revenues Billed equal to Contractor’s Compensation
approved for the Rate Year and approved Pass-Through Costs.
If Agency elects to set rates that are below those recommended in the SBWMA
report, (or delays acting to revise rates such that the recommended rates do not go
into effect until after January 1), and the Revenue Reconciliation process conducted
by SBWMA for that Rate Year demonstrates that Net Revenues Billed were less
than the approved Contractor’s Compensation contained in the SBWMA report,
interest shall accrue on the difference. Interest shall apply (i) to fifty percent (50%)
of the difference during the Rate Year in which the shortfall in revenue occurred,
and (ii) one-hundred percent (100%) of the difference during the immediately
following Rate Year. The interest rate applied to both years shall be the prime rate
in effect when SBWMA issued the report for that Rate Year plus one percent (1%).
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STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Cliff Feldman, Recycling Programs Manager
January 26, 2012 Board of Directors Meeting
Results of 2011 Fourth Quarter Recology Franchise Agreement(s) Quarterly
Contamination Measurement for Loads of Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials and
Plant Materials

Recommendation
This is an informational report and no action is necessary.
Analysis
Sampling Process and Protocol
The SBWMA is charged with performing a quarterly analysis of the contamination levels present in five distinct
types of materials collected (see Table 1) and delivered to the Shoreway Environmental Center (SEC) by
Recology San Mateo County (Recology) per the Franchise Agreement(s) with the Member Agencies. The 2011
Fourth Quarter sampling project was conducted from December 12-16, 2011 by Sloan Vasquez LLC (Irvine, CA)
with the full cooperation of both Recology and South Bay Recycling (SBR). The full sampling report can be found
in Attachment A.
Both the route or truck to be sampled and the location of the material pulled out of the load are selected
completely at random. The sampling process is to randomly pull out approximately 175 pounds of material from
each randomly selected collection vehicle (i.e., this amount ranges from 125 to 225 pounds depending on the
material type). These 175 pound samples are taken from 12 different collection vehicles for each material stream
per the requirements to achieve statistically significant or accurate results per Franchise Agreement Attachment
E-2. The material from each sample is then required to be divided into two basic categories which includes both
acceptable and unacceptable items. (However, beginning with the Third Quarter Sampling, Sloan Vazquez is
separating most material streams into as many as twelve categories to provide additional pertinent data on the
composition of the samples.) The definitions and other sections of the Franchise Agreement(s) primarily govern
how this process will unfold; however, the SBWMA, Sloan Vazquez, Recology and SBR all worked closely to
develop a more detailed approach (i.e., actual policy and procedures for the sampling process) to get this work
done accurately and cost effectively. Table 1 (on the next page) lists the material types and number of samples
measured from each.
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Table 1
2011 Fourth Quarter Material Types and Number of Samples
Total Number of Samples
Material
Measured
Commercial Targeted Recyclable Materials
12
Commercial Organic Materials
12
Commercial Plant Materials
12
Residential Targeted Recyclable Materials
12
Residential Organic Materials
12
Total
60
2011 Fourth Quarter Sampling Results
Four of the five material types sampled complied with the allowable contamination thresholds prescribed in the
Franchise Agreement(s). Table 2 provides the allowable contamination thresholds, the results from the 2011
Fourth Quarter sampling (i.e., measured contamination level) and the percent difference for each material type.

Material

Table 2
2011 Fourth Quarter Sampling Results
Allowable Maximum
Measured
Contamination Level
Contamination Level

Percent Difference

Commercial Targeted Recyclable
8.0%
15.0%
7.0%
Materials (CR)
Commercial Organic Materials (CO)
10.0%
2.2%
- 7.8%2
Commercial Plant Materials (CP)
5.0%
0.0%
- 5.0%2
Residential Targeted Recyclable
20.0%1
11.7%
- 8.3%2
Materials (RR)
Residential Organic Materials (RO)
5.0%
4.7%
- 0.3%2
1 The Residential Targeted Recyclable Materials Maximum Allowable Contamination Level for
years 2-10 (i.e., 2012 – 2020) of the Recology Franchise Agreement(s) will be established as the average
percentage measured for all four quarters in 2011.
2 No disincentive payments are associated with results that are at or below the allowable maximum
contamination levels.
The ramifications to the SBWMA of Recology failing to deliver material to the SEC that is consistently equal to or
under the allowable contamination thresholds are primarily fiscal. This is the fundamental rationale for including
the contamination related provisions in both the Recology Franchise Agreement(s) and the contract with South
Bay Recycling. The presence of unacceptable materials or contamination in the recyclable materials collected by
Recology results in additional disposal costs and potentially reduced commodity revenue for the SBWMA. The per
ton disincentive payments that must be paid by Recology for exceeding the maximum allowable contamination
level for any of the five material categories are prescribed in the Franchise Agreement(s) Attachment I Performance Incentives and Disincentives.
The SBWMA and Recology are meeting monthly to discuss commercial recycling issues and staff is confident that
Recology will work diligently to ensure that the contamination present in commercial recycling and organic
materials loads is minimized. Recology has conveyed that it will continue to implement best practices such as
regular load grading and frequent observation of loads being tipped at the SEC in an effort to reduce
contamination. The 2011 Year-End Sampling Results are provided in Table 3 on the next page.
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Table 3
2011 Year-End Sampling Results

Allowable
Maximum
2011
Contamination Q1-2011
Q2-2011
Q3-2011
Q4-2011 Year-End Results
Material
Level
Results
Results
Results
Results
(average)
CR
8.0%
22.0%
10.0%
4.2%2
15.0%
12.8%
2
2
CO
10.0%
14.7%
11.1%
3.1%
2.2%
7.8%
2
2
2
2
CP
5.0%
4.2%
1.5%
2.7%
0.0%
2.1%
RR1
20.0%1
8.3%2
7.8%2
6.2%2
11.7%2
8.5%1
RO
5.0%
3.9%2
2.90%2
3.1%2
4.7%2
3.7%
1 The Residential Targeted Recyclable Materials Maximum Allowable Contamination Level for
years 2-10 (i.e., 2012 – 2020) of the Recology Franchise Agreement(s) will be established as the average
percentage measured for all four quarters in 2011.
2 No disincentive payments are associated with results that are at or below the allowable maximum
contamination levels.
Background
In 2007, the Board approved staff’s recommendation to ensure that a comprehensive contamination management
program would be included in both the future Franchise Agreement and SEC Operations Agreement. The primary
rationale for this recommendation was to control costs for the SBWMA as excessive contamination increases
disposal and processing costs and can also result in reduced commodity revenue. Subsequently, the Collection
Services and Facility Operations RFPs were issued with provisions mitigating the impact of contamination on both
the SBWMA and Member Agencies. Thus, the Franchise Agreement(s) with Recology and the SEC Operations
Agreement with SBR both include specific provisions and associated monetary penalties to reduce contamination
as much as possible.
The Franchise Agreement(s) with Recology contain provisions in section 6.02 and Attachment I (Performance
Incentives and Disincentives) that explains the maximum contamination levels and how monetary penalties
associated with exceeding these levels would be calculated. In addition, Attachment E-2 (Contamination
Measurement Methodology: Quarterly Protocol) prescribes in detail the sampling methodology and statistical
rationale supporting implementation of this methodology that is used to measure contamination on a quarterly
basis.
Fiscal Impact
The fiscal impact to the SBWMA for the results of the 2011 Fourth Quarter Contamination Sampling will be
approximately $29,000 in payments from Recology to the SBWMA for excessive contamination levels in the
commercial recycling materials. The exact amount will be calculated by Recology and payment is owed with the
company’s Fourth Quarter 2011 Report due on January 30, 2012. The total amount of contamination disincentive
payments calculated for Recology in 2011 are provided in Table 4 on the next page.
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Table 4
2011 Contamination Disincentive Payments
Q1-2011
Q2-2011
Q3-2011
Q4-2011
2011
Contamination Contamination Contamination Contamination Contamination
Disincentive
Disincentive
Disincentive
Disincentive
Year-End
Material
Payment
Payment
Payment
Payment
Totals
CR
$50,335
$7,957
$0.0
$29,0001
$87,2921
CO
$10,829
$2,566
$0.0
$0.0
$13,395
CP
$0.0
$0.0
$0.0
$0.0
$0.0
RR
$0.0
$0.0
$0.0
$0.0
$0.0
RO
$0.0
$0.0
$0.0
$0.0
$0.0
1 The Fourth Quarter Commercial Targeted Recyclable Materials contamination disincentive payment is
estimated.

Attachment:
Attachment A – Sloan Vazquez LLC Fourth Quarter 2011 Contamination Measurement Sampling Report
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Agenda Item 4E
Results of 2011 Fourth Quarter Recolgoy Franchise
Agreement(s) Quarterly Contamination Measurement
for Loads of Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials and
Plant Materials

Attachment A: Sloan Vazquez LLC Fourth Quarter 2011
Contamination Measurement Sampling Report

♦ Sloan Vazquez LLC Fourth Quarter 2011 Contamination Measurement Sampling Report
♦ File too large to include with Packet
Posted on Website: www.rethinkwaste.org
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STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Kevin McCarthy, Executive Director
January 26, 2012 Board of Directors Meeting
Discussion on Topics for Future Board Retreat

Recommendation
This is an informational report and no action is necessary.
Analysis
The Executive Committee of the Board based on full Board feedback has started the early planning efforts for a
new Strategic Plan. At the November 17, 2011 Board meeting staff made a presentation entitled “Rethinking Our
Waste: A True Success Story in San Mateo County” to help start the Board discussion on future strategic
priorities. Staff believes that we have a great foundation to build on for future success including:
•
•
•
•
•

A modern, flexible new collection system for residents and businesses
New Shoreway facility infrastructure to support current and future processing and transfer needs
New Uniform Franchise Agreement and Shoreway Operations Agreement with high performance
standards, incentives and disincentives, more transparent and accountable compensation methodology,
and shared requirements to reduce contamination
A high performing, professional and accountable organization with a lower cost overhead structure
A great brand to build on

Staff also noted in the presentation that there are three key strategic drivers that will influence our future strategic
priorities including:
•
•
•

AB 341 with its 75% statewide recycling goal by 2020 and mandatory commercial recycling provisions
Ox Mountain Disposal Agreement expiration on December 31, 2019
Policy goal of greater rate stability and predictability

There certainly are other key factors that will influence future efforts and relative success of the JPA such as
level of member agency engagement and other governance issues, continuity and stability of JPA staff, level of
cooperation and quality of relationship with our contractors and their performance, and extended commodity
market collapse to name a few.
The goal of this Board meeting is to further flesh out topics and issues to be discussed at a future Board retreat
with a goal of focusing on strategic issues (e.g., how to leverage additional capacity at Shoreway to handle more
member agency tonnage and third party tonnage, how to spend unallocated free cash if available, plan for
mitigating impact of future higher disposal expenses, how to incentivize diversion, etc.) and not tactical issues
(e.g., a specific budget line item).
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/26/12

AGENDA ITEM: 4F – p1

Background
On March 27, 2008 the Board adopted a one-page document entitled Strategic Plan 2008 – 2012 as attached.
This document was reviewed at a Board retreat on February 22, 2008, and was meant as a high level summary
document that captures the SBWMA’s mission, values, strategic priorities, and a vision statement. More detailed
operational level documents (e.g., Shoreway master plan, SBWMA long range plan, annual performance hearing
report, annual rate review reports, etc.) were in place to address the agency’s strategic priorities.
One of the major follow-up steps after Board approval of the Strategic Plan was to reinitiate a long range planning
process for the SBWMA’s programmatic needs. A Long Range Plan was first developed by SBWMA staff in 2002
and updated in 2005. The intent was to prepare a new long range plan through a process called “Green Vision
2020” (GV2020), but such efforts were never started given the exceptional workload in 2008 through 2011 from
the contractor selection process and facility master plan.
Attachments:
Attachment A - Strategic Plan 2008 – 2012
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Our History

Strategic Plan 2008 - 2012

Formed in 1982, the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) is a joint powers
authority of twelve member agencies in San Mateo County, California and is a leader in delivering
innovative waste reduction and recycling programs. The SBWMA owns the Shoreway Environmental
Center (SEC) which receives all the recyclables, organic materials, and residual materials (i.e., solid
waste) collected in its service area.

Our Mission

SBWMA designs and implements sustainable waste reduction, recycling and facility operations
services to achieve our member agencies environmental goals and requirements.

Our Values

1. Implementing environmental practices and policies are good for our customers, local
businesses and residents.
2. Long term planning for waste reduction, recycling, and residuals management are
fundamental to achieving our mission.
3. We believe providing environmental education for children and adults fosters a greater
resource conservation ethic which results in more livable and sustainable communities.
4. We believe in delivering cost-effective and customer friendly service.
5. We believe supporting collaboration and cooperation among member agencies and key
stakeholders produces the best long-term results.

Our Strategic Priorities

1. Provide strategic oversight and direction to the environmental services companies that collect,
process, recycle and dispose of residuals for the member agencies.
2. Ensure contractors’ and SBWMA programs are managed cost effectively for the ratepayers
with performance metrics for all programs.
3. Deliver strategic oversight and management of the Shoreway Environmental Center to meet
financial, operational, and environmental goals.
4. Ensure compliance with environmental regulations governing the collection and processing of
recyclables and organic materials and meet or exceed diversion goals.
5. Anticipate trends and implement innovative solutions for waste reduction, recycling and facility
operations services.
6. Monitor and assess contractor performance so that customer satisfaction and service delivery
meets or exceeds contractual requirements.
7. Adhere to best practices in office operations, operational infrastructure, procurement, human
resource, IT and governance.
8. Support SBWMA programs and policies through relevant outreach, education, and focused
communication.

Our Vision

SBWMA is nationally recognized for environmental leadership in sustainable materials management
practices to support livable communities.
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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TO BE PRESENTED AT THE JANUARY 2012
BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S MEETING

5A. RSMC FRANCHISE AGREEMENT OPERATIONAL AND CONTRACT
ADMINISTRATION UPDATE
5B. SBR SHOREWAY OPERATION AGREEMENT UPDATE

Agenda Item 5

Agenda Item 6

STAFF UPDATE
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Cliff Feldman, Recycling Programs Manager
January 26, 2012 Board of Directors Meeting
Update on Recology Commercial Recycling Outreach Efforts

Recommendation
This is an informational report and no action is necessary.
Analysis
Recology San Mateo County (Recology) is not required to submit monthly statistics on its commercial recycling
activities; however, the company is required to submit a quarterly status report on this program per section 9.06.N
of the Franchise Agreement(s). Even though a monthly update is not contractually required, the company has
agreed to provide the status of some key commercial recycling metrics each month. Below is an example of the
information that Recology plans to submit monthly for this staff report to the Board, and staff will continue working
with Recology to determine what other pertinent information can be provided on a monthly basis.
November and December 2011 Recology Commercial Recycling Outreach Program Metrics
• *18 new Compost customers subscribed to service (14 carts and 4 bins) and *6 in December (6 carts and
) bins)
• *58 new Recycle customers subscribed to service (42 carts and 16 bins) and *204 in December (86 carts
and 19 bins)
• 106 commercial recycling brochures and posters were distributed in November
• 261 internal recycling containers were distributed in November and 157 in December
• 436 Buddy Bags were delivered in November and xx in December
(*The above figures are for new starts and don’t reflect any customers discontinuing recycling or compost
services.)
•

1 commercial recycling “community event” was reported for November and 0 for December:

Date

Franchise

NAME OF EVENT

11/15/2011

RWC

CBRE AMERICA RECYCLES DAY EVENT

Location
701

CHESAPEAKE DR

TIME
11-1PM

Franchise codes: ATH = Atherton, BEL = Belmont, BUR = Burlingame, CSM = County of San Mateo, EPA = East Palo
Alto, FOC = Foster City, HIL = Hillsborough, MAT = San Mateo, MPK = Menlo Park, NFO = North Fair Oaks, RWC =
Redwood City, SNC = San Carlos, WBS = West Bay Sanitary District
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•

10 commercial recycling “presentations and trainings” were reported for November and 2 for December:
Customer Name

ATTENDEES
(staff, custodians, students, etc.)

Presentaion or
Training

Date

Franchise

11/08/2011

BEL

HOLY CROSS GREEK

11/08/2011

BUR

SISTERS OF MERCY

11/08/2011

RWC

COUNTY OF SAN MATEO

11/09/2011

BUR

SISTERS OF MERCY

11/15/2011

BUR

SISTERS OF MERCY

11/16/2011

BEL

HOLY CROSS GREEK

11/16/2011

BUR

SISTERS OF MERCY

11/29/2011

NFO

WALLEYS PLACE

11/29/2011

MPK

RISTORANTE MATARO

11/30/2011

MAT

CHURCH OF TRANSFIGURATION

Date

Franchise

12/02/2011

EPA

FAMILY CONNECTIONS

1070 BEECH ST

PARENTS, STUDENTS AND TEACHERS

PRESENTATION 10:30 AM

12/062011

MPK

SISTERS OF MERCY

1275 CRANE ST

KITCHEN STAFF, MANAGER, HOUSE KEEPING

TRAINING

Customer Name

Location
900 ALAMEDA DE LAS PULGAS

STUDENTS AND TEACHERS

PRESENTATION

STAFF

PRESENTATION

CAFE STAFF

PRESENTATION

2300 ADELINE DR

STAFF

PRESENTATION

2300 ADELINE DR

STAFF AND RESIDENTS

PRESENTATION

STUDENTS AND TEACHERS

PRESENTATION

SPANISH SPEAKING STAFF

PRESENTATION

695 5TH AVE

STAFF AND PATIENTS

PRESENTATION

827 SANTA CRUZ AVE

OWNERS

TRAINING

EMPLOYEES

TRAINING

2300 ADELINE DR
455 COUNTY CTR

900 ALAMEDA DE LAS PULGAS
2300 ADELINE DR

3900 ALAMEDA DE LAS PULGAS

Location

ATTENDEES
(staff, custodians, students, etc.)

Presentaion or
Training
Time

1:30 PM

Staff has had several meetings with Recology during 2011 on commercial recycling and requested additional
analysis and data to facilitate decision making on next steps regarding increasing tonnage from the commercial
sector. In addition to analysis of the program’s performance, staff has requested Recology to providing
information on profiling the commercial customer base, the net change on account retention and attraction efforts
and information related to the internal metrics used to measure the relative success and cost effectiveness of its
commercial recycling outreach (sales) efforts. The results of these inquiries will be addressed in detail at a
Special Board Workshop on Commercial Recycling to be scheduled in the next 60 days.
Background
On April 22, 2010, the Board adopted Resolution No. 2010-14 approving the Commercial Recycling Agreement
between Recology and Allied Waste/Republic Services. This agreement transferred Allied’s commercial recycling
outreach program to RSMC commencing on July 1, 2010. In addition, Recology moved its commercial recycling
staff into the Shoreway Administration building on this date.
The Member Agencies Franchise Agreements with Recology required the company to commence the first new
program, the Recycling Blitz Commercial Recycling Campaign, also on July 1, 2010. Recology’s Recycling Blitz
Plan and the SBWMA Commercial Recycling Communications and Outreach Plans were shared with the Board in
May 2010. These plans outline the next steps regarding stepping up efforts to increase diversion from the
commercial sector in the near term.
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Commencing with Recology’s first quarterly report due on April 30, 2011, the company is required to submit with
each quarterly report a detailed update on its commercial recycling program outreach efforts. This requirement is
prescribed in Franchise Agreement section 9.06.N, as follows:
“N. Commercial Recycling Promotion Program Status Report. Contractor must prepare and submit,
both quarterly and annually, to Agency and SBWMA, a Commercial Recycling Program Status
Report. The Commercial Recycling Program Status Report shall include, but not be limited to:
1.

A summary of training and professional development activities for the Commercial Recycling
Promotion and supervisory staff.

2.

A description of the strategy and overall approach to attract and retain a high quality and
effective Commercial Recycling Promotion Program and supervisory staff.

3.

A description and status of meeting the goals and objectives for the Commercial Recycling
Promotion team and how these goals and objectives are tied to the compensation incentive
plan. (Contractor must explain how the stated goals and objectives will be accomplished if no
compensation incentive plan is used.)

4.

A description of Contractor’s sales strategy for maintaining and/or expanding the existing
Commercial Recycling account base and diversion levels.

5.

A description of the services provided to the Commercial and Agency Facility sectors.

6.

A detailed accounting of diversion statistics for the Commercial and Agency Facility sectors.”

Recology has now submitted three quarterly reports and it is important to note that the commercial recycling
section of all three 2011 Quarterly Reports have fallen short of establishing quantifiable goals with regards to
increasing diversion, nor have these reports provided a detailed description of the strategic approach employed by
the Recology sales team to increase diversion. While the company assured staff that quantifiable goals for the
commercial recycling sales team and Commercial Recycling Manager would be developed, staff has not been
provided this information. The 2011 Third Quarter Report provides general goals that are supported by task
based metrics for each Zero Waste Specialist. If quantifiable diversion goals and a specific sales based approach
are shared with staff, this information will in turn be shared with the Member Agencies at the upcoming Special
Board Workshop on Commercial Recycling.
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STAFF UPDATE
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Recycling Staff
January 26, 2012 Board of Director’s Meeting
Recycling and Outreach Programs Update

Recommendation
This is an informational report and no action is necessary.
Recology 2012 Annual Public Education Plan
RethinkWaste and Recology staff met in December to review their 2012 Public Education Plan and discuss
specific components to ensure that all outreach and education efforts are coordinated and remain focused and
effective. Follow up meetings are planned for January and the upcoming months to determine whether any
changes are going to be recommended for Member Agency consideration.
Curbside Inc., Door-to-Door HHW Program
The following eight Member Agencies are now participating in the program: Belmont, East Palo Alto, Foster City,
Hillsborough, Menlo Park, San Carlos, San Mateo, and West Bay Sanitary District and San Mateo County is
rolling out the program beginning February 15, 2012. Interest in the program remains strong and the company
has made approximately 6,589 collections since the program started in mid-May 2010 through December 2011.
Approximately 272,530 pounds of HHW material, 173,512 pounds of Universal Waste and 100,995 pounds of EScrap have been collected since the start of the program. We encourage additional Member Agencies to offer the
program as it provides a more convenient and cost-effective option to properly recycle and dispose of a wide
variety of materials (such as common HHW) than is currently available through the County’s drop-off program at
Tower Road.
Household Battery and Cell Phone Curbside Recycling Collection Program
The monthly average of batteries and cell phones collected through the curbside recycling program during 2011
was 3,945 pounds. A total of 53,000 pounds was collected during 2010, which is slightly less than the 57,000
pounds collected in 2009. While early participation in CartSmart program resulted in an increase of household
battery and cell phone collection, it appears this increase has now leveled off as the full year result (i.e., 47,334
pounds) is below that achieved in 2010. It is anticipated that this trend will continue as a similar year over year
reduction will likely be experienced. The total amount of batteries and cell phones collected in November and
December 2011 was 5,740 pounds.
Shoreway Education Center School Groups and Public Tours Update
Tours of the Shoreway Environmental Education Center started in the second week of January. In addition to the
school groups, staff is scheduling tours for the various community groups that had previously been put on a
waiting list. Tour logistics have been conveyed to teachers and all participants via email or phone, and printed
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material and this approach has worked well so far. All participants are required to sign a permission slip prior to
taking the tour. At the end of the tour, teachers and chaperones are asked to fill out a survey about their
experience, and the responses received thus far been very positive. For example, the tour program was
described as “informative and worth class time to learn about resource conservation.” Below is a table showing
the tours that have been conducted and those scheduled for January 2012.
Date
January 10

School/Group
Baywood Elementary

Jurisdiction
San Mateo

January 12

La Honda Elementary

La Honda

Grade/Group Total # of participants
4th & 5th
31
3rd & 4th

January 18

KZZR Armenian

San Francisco

4th

January 19*

Public Open House

Various

Adults

January 26

Sea Crest

Half Moon Bay

4th
Total Participants

26
13
40
34
144

*Thursday, January
is open house day. We are expecting approximately 40 adults from City of Menlo Park Staff, World
Centric, Whole Foods and community members from Redwood City and San Mateo.
19th

Staff continues to promote the Tour Program, via various channels, (emails, press release, flyers, website, social
media, environmental education platforms, etc.) Staff is open to any suggestions for further promoting the
program.
Tour availability
Tours are being offered Monday-Wednesday from 9:30am – 11:30am OR 12:30pm - 2:30pm and Thursday
9:30am – 11:30am. Every third Thursday of the month is being designated as Open House Day for the public
from 9:30am – 12:00pm.
RethinkWaste Website and Social Media
The RethinkWaste website continues to be updated with information on the CartSMART residential collection and
new BizSMART commercial collection services, and the Shoreway Environmental Center. Plans are underway to
revamp the website to make it more user-friendly and interactive. Staff received some input from Board Members
and the Public Education Subcommittee on the features they would like to see on the updated website and we are
in the process of developing a Request for Proposals to issue on the website redesign.
The current site averaged approximately 483 visits per week since the last Board meeting, of which nearly 73%
were new visits. The most commonly visited sections of the site during this period continued to be “Beyond the
Cart” and “Shoreway” sections.
RethinkWaste also continues to use its Facebook and Twitter pages to promote program information and new
services. To date, the Facebook page has 219 “fans,” an increase of approximately 25 fans since the November
report. The Twitter page has 65 followers. There was a notable increase in activity on the RethinkWaste website,
and Facebook and Twitter pages immediately following the release of the last rethinker newsletter. Staff will
continue to work on strategies to drive more people to the pages. Our Facebook page can be found at
www.facebook.com/rethinkwaste, and the Twitter page is located at www.twitter.com/rethinkwaste.
rethinker Newsletter
The winter issue of the rethinker is currently in production and will be sent to residents at the end of January.
This issue focuses on the Shoreway Environmental Center and the School Groups and Public Tours programs.
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/26/12

AGENDA ITEM: 6b – p2

The fall issue of the newsletter provided information on how to sign up for an electronic version, including a
promotion to encourage the sign ups. Over 400 residents signed up for electronic copies of the rethinker. Staff
will continue driving residents to go paperless with the newsletter.
Rethink@Work Pledge
RethinkWaste will kick off “Rethink@Work” on January 30, 2012; a pledge campaign to increase visibility and
raise awareness for recycling in the RethinkWaste business community. Individuals will be encouraged to join the
campaign by pledging to reduce waste in their workplace. Upon pledging, they will be placed into random
drawings each week for a gift card of $15 from local shops and businesses. In addition, five businesses will be
selected and rewarded with a lunch and tour of the Shoreway Environmental Center for their employees during
the contest period based on the pledges. One business will be selected every two weeks from pictures that have
been uploaded to RethinkWaste’s Facebook page or by random selection. The selected businesses will also
receive a visit from Recology’s Zero Waste Specialists to encourage further recycling and diversion.
The campaign will run through March 31, 2012 and will be open to anyone working in the RethinkWaste service
area. Rethink@Work will be actively promoted through the RethinkWaste and Recology websites, Facebook and
Twitter pages. Pledges will be made online through dedicated pages on RethinkWaste’s website and Facebook
page. In addition, weekly tips on how to recycle more and reduce their waste will be emailed to participants in the
campaign.
Business Awards Program
RethinkWaste, in partnership with Recology, is in the process of developing a Business Awards program to
recognize businesses and multi-family complexes for their efforts to reduce waste in 2011 through the BizSMART
collection services. The awards program will be promoted through bill inserts, local chambers of commerce,
websites, advertising and email blasts. It is anticipated that the program will be launched in February with the
recognition event occurring sometime in late spring.
Public Education Subcommittee
A Public Education Subcommittee meeting was held on January 11, 2012 to discuss upcoming education and
outreach efforts, strategize on future activities and garner feedback from members. The subcommittee members
are Brian Moura (San Carlos), Laura Galli (Foster City), Lillian Clark (RecycleWorks/San Mateo County), Rebecca
Fotu (Menlo Park) and Roxanne Murray (San Mateo). RethinkWaste staff consisted of Kevin McCarthy, Cathy
Hidalgo, Faustina Mututa and Monica Devincenzi.
Community Outreach Events
Staff will offer assistance to our Member Agencies by coordinating their Community Outreach Events, such as
Compost Giveaway and E-Scrap/Shredding events. In addition, staff will coordinate the Member Agencies events
with Recology for the Bring Your Own Bucket giveaway of compost to residents and the Confidential Document
Destruction Service Event. The request form will be sent out to each agency by the end of January and staff will
confirm the events, and provide outreach as needed.
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Approved Operating Agreement Amendments or Recommended Recology Franchise Agreement
Administrative Changes
Staff is requesting that Member Agencies keep us apprised if any administrative changes have been made.
Agreement
Operations
Agreement

Franchise
Agreement(s)

Franchise
Agreement(s)

Board Approval

October 28, 2010

N/A

N/A

Franchise
Agreement(s)

N/A

Franchise
Agreement(s)

N/A

Franchise
Agreements

N/A

SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/26/12

Staff
Recommendation

Description

Amendment No. 1. Is now effective as eight Member
Agencies have approved the Amendments.
Approved by: Belmont, Foster City, Menlo Park,
N/A
Redwood City, San Carlos, City of San Mateo, San
Mateo County, and West Bay Sanitary District.
Requested Member Agencies send letter accepting
interest waiver offer from Recology on potential 2011
revenue requirement shortfall if rates approved after
Via email on
January 1 but before March 1, 2011.
October 20, 2010
Approved by: Atherton, Foster City, Redwood City,
City of San Mateo, San Mateo County, and West Bay
Sanitary District.
Overage “bags” change to “tags”; SBWMA relief from
Via email on
purchasing battery/cell-phone bags; On-call bulky item
December 9, 2010 collection temporary schedule for January 2011.
Approved by: Foster City.
Member Agency self haul remittance of payments to
Via email on
SBWMA by Recology.
December 13, 2010 Approved by: Burlingame, Foster City, and Redwood
City.
Six Member Agencies (i.e., Belmont, Burlingame,
Foster City, Menlo Park, Redwood City, San Carlos
Via email on
and City of San Mateo) are requested to allow
June 3, 2011
Recology to continue using used collection vehicles
through September 30, 2011.
Approved by Foster City.
All Member Agencies were requested by Recology to
modify the Bulky Item Collection service schedule.
While customers can sign up for this service anytime,
this change provides the company relief from providing
the service from January 1-22, 2012 in lieu of
Via email on
December 1, 2011-January 2, 2012. The company has
December 2, 2011 assured staff that all customers on the wait list will
receive the service within the contractually specified
two weeks commencing on January 23, 2012.
Approved by Foster City, Menlo Park, City of San
Mateo, San Mateo County, and West Bay Sanitary
District.
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STAFF UPDATE
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Hilary Gans, Facility Operations Contracts Manager
January 26, 2012 Board of Director’s Meeting
Shoreway Construction Update

Construction Update
This project update summarizes the status of the construction of the Shoreway Master Plan Phase II
improvements which include the construction of new Materials Recovery Facility (MRF) building, modifications to
the Transfer Station (TS), and various site work; and Phase III improvements which are comprised solely of the
purchase and installation of the single stream processing equipment. A contract in the amount of $16,209,000
was awarded to SJ Amoroso on July 23, 2009 for Phase II of the Master Plan construction work. On October 7,
2009 the Board approved a contract with BHS for $15,713,180, exclusive of sales tax, for the Phase III work.
This report includes a discussion of completed and upcoming construction activities, updates to the construction
schedule, and a summary of the project budget.
Financial Update
On July 23, 2009 the Board approved the sale of Bonds for the Shoreway Master Plan Project in a total dollar
amount of $56.5 million of which $46.97 million was dedicated to actual physical improvements. Through the end
of December 2012, $45,068,300 has been spent, leaving a fund balance of $1,903,600 (see SEC Master Plan
Budget table on page 3 of this report for detail).
At this time, it is forecasted that there are sufficient funds to cover the remaining project expenditures through the
completion of the Master Plan project without tapping the transfer station bid deduct funds of $515,000 or the
projected remaining unallocated project contingency of $211,000.
Issues of Note
Completion of Solar installation – The solar system is currently generating power!
• The Solar installation started in early November 2011 and concluded at the end of December 2012. The
installation included:
o the placement of 2,700 roof-mounted arrays in the MRF and TS buildings,
o installation of 90 ground mounted arrays in the tour demonstration area,
o installation of power inverters, controls and monitoring equipment in the MRF and TS buildings,
o electrical interconnection and metering with PG&E.
• The City Building department has inspected and approved the project.
• Final project commissioning is in process which includes an inspection of the physical installation and roof
mounting, the system power generation, and comparing the PG&E invoice back to the profoma model to
ensure that the system is living up to goals.
• An educational solar kiosk is being designed that will be placed alongside the ground level demonstration
array (in the visitor parking lot) and that will explain the solar system and its contribution in powering the
SEC facilities.
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Construction and Other Project Activities
The following construction activities occurred since the last update report:
MRF and Transfer Station Buildings
o Construction complete and pending Final Occupancy permit
o Installation of Solar PV system
Site, Other Buildings and Projects
o Re-lamping Recology truck and container shop buildings with energy efficient lighting
o Shoreway frontage sewer line and landscape repair
o Installation of backflow preventer valves
o Electrical modifications to administration building to comply with code
The following construction activities are expected to occur during the next reporting period:
MRF and Transfer Station Buildings
o Frontage sign lighting
o Landscape timer and controls
o Installation of MRF residue shuttle conveyor inside TS
o Installation of tunnel scale readouts
o Water installation to TS roof
o Electrical and water installation at TS shop area
o Push wall reinforcements for residue stockpiling
o Floor treatments to MRF lobby
o Installation of recycled art at MRF lobby
o Reconfiguring windows at public recycling center
Site, Other Buildings and Projects
o Reconditioning all rollup doors at facilities
o Re-landscape of Recology administrative building
o Electrical supply to SBR truck maintenance area
o Administration building floor repair
Project Expenditures Summary


Construction Budget (S.J. Amoroso)
The construction contract with SJ Amoroso was closed out in December and the City building Department has
inspected and approved work completed by the SJ Amoroso. Cumulative progress payments made to
Amoroso through the end of December 2012 total $16,209,000 on a total contract amount of $16,209,000. All
outstanding balances and retainages have been paid to SJ Amoroso.



Construction Management Budget (Covello)
Covello’s construction oversight and onsite staff was completed in December 2011. The company continues
to a low level of support related to permit approval, construction documentation preparation, and the electrical
connection required by the solar installation.



Design Support Services (JRMA)
The Master Plan design support services contract with JRMA is closed except for the project LEED
commissioning. The LEED Commissioning is a stand-alone scope of work with in JRMA’s design support
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services contract. Before the final LEED application can be made to the USGBC, the solar installation must
be completed and operational. JRMA is now in the process of finalizing the LEED application with the goal of
submitting it in February. The Project Commissioning with JRMA was budgeted at $30,000 and it is
anticipated that this work will be completed within this budget amount.


MRF Processing Equipment and Installation (BHS)
The MRF equipment contract with BHS was closed out in December. All performance testing has been
completed, identified equipment and installation deficiencies have been corrected by the company, and the
SBWMA has formally accepted the equipment. Total payments made to BHS through the end of December
2012 total $14,338,000 on a total contract amount of $14,354,000. All outstanding balances and retainages
have been paid to BHS.



Other Master Plan Project Expenditures
Payments to other contractors through the month of December 2012 totaled $70,084. Total anticipated cost
for remaining master plan projects total $701,000 and will be drawn from the Soft Costs and CM & Other
budget lines which have a balance remaining balance of $734,800.

SHOREWAY ENVIRONMENTAL CENTER MASTER PLAN BUDGET
THROUGH DECEMBER 2011

(000's)

Vendor

Original Project
Budget Amount

Allocated
Contingency

Revised Project
Total

Spent Amount

Remaining
Amount

PROJECT COST SUMMARY
Preliminary Costs
Planning, Design & Engineering

Various

Bond Issuance Costs

2,404.0
90.5

28.5
(7.4)

2,432.5

(2,427.0)

83.1

(83.1)

5.5
0.0

Phase I
Construction

Rodan

2,405.0

31.3

2,436.3

(2,436.3)

0.0

Construction Management

Covello

444.3

15.9

460.2

(460.2)

0.0

Amoroso

16,209.0

Phase II
Construction
Construction Contingency (10%)
Permit, CM, & Design Support Services
Construction Soft Costs

16,209.0

(16,209.0)

0.0

3,053.9

3,053.9

(3,015.7)

38.2

2,259.0

714.0

2,973.0

(2,690.7)

282.3

786.7

6.0

792.7

(340.2)

452.5

Amoroso
Covello/JRMA
Various

-

Phase III
Equipment Installation
Contingency (10%)

BHS

2,432.4

BHS

30.0

2,462.4

(2,462.4)

0.0

246.2

246.2

(126.0)

120.2
-

Camera System, elec.

85.0

-

85.0

(85.0)

Supplemental Fire Suppression

75.0

-

75.0

(75.0)

81.2

14,354.4

(14,338.2)

16.2

492.8

492.8

(307.5)

185.3

-

95.0

(12.0)

83.0

46,251.5

(45,068.3)

1,183.2

4,684.8

4,684.8

(4,479.4)

205.4

728.0

728.0

(213.0)

Equipment
Contingency
Construction Management
Project Total

BHS

14,273.2

BHS
Various

95.0
41,559.1

4,692.4

-

Other Project Dollars
Unallocated Contingency (Balance of Funds)
Transfer Station Public Area (SJA Bid Deduction)
Project Subtotal
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STAFF UPDATE
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Kevin McCarthy, Executive Director
Marshall Moran, Finance Manager
January 26, 2012 Board of Directors Meeting
Update on 2012/2013 Franchise Rate Setting Process

Recommendation
This is an informational report and no action is necessary other than the various requested future responses
below.
Analysis
This staff report will be provided monthly to the Board commencing with the November 17, 2011 Board meeting.
The purpose of this staff update report is to keep the Board informed on the timing, schedule of events and issues
affecting Member Agencies during the 2013 Compensation Application review (performed in 2012) and the
Recommended Rate Adjustment process for the upcoming 2013 Rate Year (i.e., establishing rates for January 1December 31, 2013). The goal is to provide and update pertinent information for Member Agencies to effectively
plan for and manage communications regarding the next year’s compensation application and rate setting
process.
Attached is the draft 2012 (for calendar year 2013 rates) Rate Approval Schedule (Attachment A).
New Issues Affecting 2013 Compensation Adjustment include:
•

Service Level Adjustments. Per the Member Agency Franchise Agreements with Recology, the company
will include in its 2013 Compensation Application the second and final service level adjustment to
account for changes in accounts for residential service, lifts for commercial service, and pulls for rolloff
service that have occurred since first adjustment that was made in 2010 to the company’s proposal
submitted in 2008. It is important to note that the 2008 proposal which was used as the basis for
establishing 2011 rates relied on customer service level data provided by Allied Waste/Republic Services.

•

Recology Annual Revenue Reconciliation for 2011. Recology will submit a Revenue Reconciliation
Application to the SBWMA by March 31, 2012 which will compare the approved compensation owed to
Recology for 2011 with the actual net compensation billed and retained by Recology after paying for
Pass-Through costs for disposal at Shoreway and Agency fees (e.g., Franchise Fees) paid to each
Member Agency. Each Agency will have a surplus or shortfall which will be added to or subtracted from
the 2013 Revenue Requirement; this surplus or shortfall can not be carried forward to 2014 rates
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•

Service to Agency Facilities for 2011. The allocation of the cost to provide service to this distinct Service
Sector to each Member Agency will be adjusted retroactively for 2011 based on final statistics from
Recology. The initial allocation for 2011 was based on projections in lieu of the actual operating statistics,
thus the Board approved using a temporary allocation until the company returned with actual statistics to
be provided with the March 31, 2012 Revenue Reconciliation Application.

Schedule of Rate Review Activities
Jan/Feb 2012
• SBWMA to send letter to Board requesting feedback on how to improve annual rate setting process
March 2012
• Recology is required to submit the first Revenue Reconciliation Application by March 31, 2012 (and
annually thereafter).
• SBWMA to award a contract to audit the financial data provided by SBR and Recology for 2011 to ensure
this data is accurate.
May 2012
• SBWMA to send out letter to Board requesting feedback from all agencies on issues affecting 2012 rate
adjustments (e.g., changes to Agency fees, revenue and tonnage projections). Response requested by
July 1.
May/June 2012
• SBWMA to issue report summary on the Recology 2011 Revenue Reconciliation Application
• Special Board Workshop for Board Members, Elected Officials and Other Stakeholders to discuss rate
setting process and share results on Recology 2011 Revenue Reconciliation Application
July 2012
• July 1 - Rate Applications due from Recology and SBR for 2013 compensation application.
• July 1-15 – SBWMA to provide Recology Compensation Application to all Member Agencies and
commence a process to include Member Agency feedback. The Member Agency feedback will be
needed by August 1.
• July 21 – BOD Staff report on estimated residential revenue changes due to cart migration by Member
Agency with an update on cart migration since July 2011; to be discussed at July 26th Board meeting
• July 22 - Response from Member Agencies to SBWMA on issues affecting 2013 rate adjustments (e.g.,
changes in agency fees, revenue and tonnage projections).
August 2012
• August 1 - Member Agency feedback due on 2013 Recology Compensation Application.
• August 8 - Feedback from agencies on what to include in 2013 collection rate adjustment for current and
future cart migration (agencies may decline to include an estimate for future cart migration).
September 2012
• September 1 - Preliminary report issued by SBWMA on Recology’s Rate Application for 2013
compensation adjustment.
• September 1 - Preliminary report issued by SBWMA on SBR’s Rate Application for 2013 compensation
adjustment.
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•
•
•
•
•

September 11 - Comments due back from Member Agencies on preliminary Rate Reports for Recology
and SBR.
September 20 - Final Rate Report issued for Recology’s Rate Application for 2013 compensation
adjustment (for consideration at September 27, 2012 Board meeting)
September 20 - Final Rate Report issued for SBR’s Rate Application for 2013 compensation adjustment
(for consideration at September 27, 2012 Board meeting)
September 20 - Consolidated Rate Report issued with recommended total collection rate adjustments for
2013 (including Recology compensation, disposal expense at Shoreway, agency fees, and agency
directed cart migration impact for 2013).
September 27 – Board consideration and approval of SBWMA Consolidated Rate Report.

September 27 – December 31, 2012
• Member Agencies notice and approve final 2013 solid waste rates
November 2012
• Report to Board on Recommended January 1, 2012 Shoreway tip fee adjustment including Bond
proforma update for 2013 SBWMA financial projection with assumed tip fee and reserve balances.
Attachment:
Attachment A – Draft 2013 Rate Approval Schedule
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DRAFT

2013 Rate Approval Schedule
Member Agency Rate Setting Process
The 2013 Recology Compensation Application is due to the SBWMA on July 1, 2012
per the deadline prescribed in the Member Agency Franchise Agreement(s). On
September 1, 2012 (also per the Franchise Agreements), the SBWMA will issue its
Report on Recology’s Compensation Application. The Member Agencies then have 10
days to provide comments on the SBWMA’s Report. The comments received will be
incorporated in the 2013 SBWMA Consolidated Rate Report that will become binding
upon the Board’s approval at the September Board meeting. The overarching
implications of this are that the rate increases put forth in the SBWMA Rate Report will
be the minimum rate increases each Member Agency is obligated to adopt or face
interest penalties for amounts owed to Recology.
September 27, 2012 BOD Meeting
•
•

Recology and SBR Compensation Applications Approved
Consolidated Rate Report Approved

Member Agency Residential Billing Schedule
Group A: October-November-December
(Billed September 30, 2012; December 31, 2012)
• Menlo Park
• Redwood City (Not applicable to Residential, Redwood City does its own billing.)
• San Mateo
• West Bay Sanitary District
Group B: November-December-January
(Billed October 31, 2012; January 31, 2013)
• Atherton
• Burlingame
• San Carlos
Group C: December-January-February
(Billed November 30, 2012; February 28, 2013)
• East Palo Alto (Not applicable to Residential.)
SBWMA 2013 Rate Approval Schedule
DRAFT
______________________________________________________________________
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•
•
•

Foster City
Hillsborough
County of San Mateo

Prop 218 Public Notice Implications
Prop 218 requires an agency to provide 45 days public notice directly to all account
holders prior to authorizing a rate increase. If more than 50% of all account holders file
a protest letter within the 45 day public comment period, the agency cannot adopt the
proposed rate increase.
Bill Insert Considerations
Recology typically requires that a bill insert is prepared and ready for insertion with the
bills a minimum of two weeks prior to the scheduled bill issuance date. However, the
company may reduce this deadline to 5 business days for special circumstances, such
as a Prop 218 Notice. The company has detailed guidelines regarding the specifications
for bill inserts and will share these upon request. Agencies issuing a Prop 218 Notice
via Recology’s bills will need to pay directly for the costs associated with production
and printing but will save on mailing expenses since Recology can include the insert
with its bills at no additional cost.
Direct Mail Considerations
Member Agencies sending the Prop 218 Notice via direct mail will need to pay directly
for the costs associated with production, printing and mailing. Agencies sending a
direct mail piece typically include these costs in their rates. Sending the Prop 218 Notice
via direct mail provides the Agency with total control and flexibility regarding production
and mailing of the notice.
Bill Insert vs. Direct Mail:
Group A
These agencies may be able to prepare and print a bill insert in time for inclusion with
the September 30, 2012 mailing. Therefore these agencies will need to produce a
direct mail piece in order to close the Prop 218 public hearing process and adopt rates
prior to January 1, 2013.
Proposed Schedule:
September 27, 2012 .......... SBWMA BOD Approves Recology and SBR Compensation.
October 1-15 ..................... Governing body or agency staff approves issuance of the
Prop 218 notice.
October 16-31 ................... Prop 218 Notice printed and issued via direct mail
SBWMA 2013 Rate Approval Schedule
DRAFT
______________________________________________________________________
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November 1-15 ................. Governing body closes the Prop 218 public notice period
and adopts 2012 rates effective January 1, 2013.
December 31 ..................... First Recology bill issued with new 2013 rates.

SBWMA 2013 Rate Approval Schedule
DRAFT
______________________________________________________________________
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Group B
These agencies will likely be able to prepare and print a bill insert in time for inclusion
with the October 31, 2012 mailing. However, since the Prop 218 process will not close
for 45 days after issuance of the Prop 218 rate increase notice, these agencies will have
to bring the results of the Prop 218 notice before their governing body between
December 16 and 31, 2012. Otherwise, these agencies will need to produce a direct
mail piece in order to close the Prop 218 public hearing process prior to January 1,
2013.
Proposed Schedule:
September 27, 2012 .......... SBWMA BOD Approves Recology and SBR Compensation
October 1 – October 15 ..... Governing body or agency staff approves issuance of the
Prop 218 notice.
October 31 ........................ Prop 218 Notice included with Recology bills
December 15-31 ............... Governing body closes the Prop 218 public notice period
and adopts 2013 rates.
January 31, 2013 .............. First Recology bill issued with new 2013 rates including a
retroactive rate adjustment for January.

Group C
While these agencies will have ample time to prepare and print a bill insert in time for
inclusion with the November 30, 2012 mailing, this is moot since the 45 day Prop 218
notification period will not close until after January 1, 2013 (i.e., on January 14, 2013).
Therefore these agencies will be required to produce a direct mail piece in order to
close the Prop 218 public hearing process prior to January 1, 2013.
Proposed Schedule:
September 27, 2012 .......... SBWMA BOD Approves Recology and SBR Compensation
October 1-15 ..................... Governing body or agency staff approves issuance of the
Prop 218 notice.
October 16-31 ................... Prop 218 Notice printed and issued via direct mail
December 1-15 ................. Governing body closes the Prop 218 public notice period
and adopts 2013 rates.
February 28, 2013 ............. First Recology bill issued with new 2013 rates including a
retroactive rate adjustment for January and February.

SBWMA 2013 Rate Approval Schedule
DRAFT
______________________________________________________________________
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FEBRUARY – BOARD AGENDA ITEMS
(SUBJECT TO CHANGE)
•

Board Workshop on Commercial Recycling Outreach and Promotion Program and Results of Recology San
Mateo County Efforts -- To be rescheduled

February 2012
• Board and Staff Retreat on Strategic Planning – date and time TBD
February 23, 2012
• Approval of Quarterly Investment Report as of 12/31/11
• Review of Investment Policy
• Resolution Approving Mid-Year Budget Adjustments FY2012
• Update on Shoreway Remediation Project
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